          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          8

             -------------------------------x

          9

         10                 March 10, 1999

                            Start:  6:40 p.m.

         11                 Recess: 9:40 p.m.

         12                 Cooper Union

                            Hewitt Auditorium

         13                 New York, New York

         14

                  P A R T I C I P A N T S

         15

         16

                         COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Margarita Lopez

         17                                 Kathryn Freed

                                            A. Gifford Miller

         18                                 Christine Quinn

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         217 Broadway -  Suite 511

         25              New York, New York 10007

                              (800) 756-3410

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             Abe Markman

          4  Call For Justice Company

          5  C. Virginia Fields

             Manhattan Borough President

          6

             Ted Reich

          7  Lower East Side Chapter

          8  Lorenzo Brusol

          9  Catherine Abate

             Former State Senator

         10

             Leslie Jones

         11

             Morris Betowitz

         12  Community Board No. 3

         13  Lois Schlesinger

         14  Adam Honickman

         15  Bob Coler

         16  Don Reiss

         17  Norma Pennington

         18  Jessica Carmona Biaz

             International Socialist Organization

         19

             Lee Wengrath

         20  International Socialist Organization

         21  Manerva Ohupia

             District Director

         22  Office of Congresswoman Nydia Velasquez

         23  Drew Kramer

             Executive Director

         24  Lower East Side Harm Reduction Center

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Rick Hill

          4

             Verena Riech

          5

             Fidalis Dear

          6  International Socialist Organization

          7  Julius Dickson

          8  Vicki Jacobs

             Lower East Side Needle Exchange

          9

             Keith Krandal

         10  Community Board No. 2

         11  Alberto Gomez

         12  Melva Matz

         13  Robert Jurasky

         14  Catherine Roberts

         15  Forest Telas

         16  Ann Arlan

             Community Board No. 2

         17

             Arthur Mimms

         18

             Christopher Goken

         19  NYC Gay and Lesbian Anti-Violence Project

         20  Pam Rinando

             NYC Police Officer

         21

             Brad Wil

         22

             Michael Laden

         23  Cooper Square Association

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            4

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ:  I want to

          3  clarify that this is a hearing, and it is an

          4  official one from the City Council. It has been

          5  called by the Manhattan Delegation. We decided to

          6  hold hearings all over Manhattan and the Manhattan

          7  Delegation decided to divide it different days,

          8  different locations. Today two hearings are taking

          9  place, one in Harlem and one over here.

         10                 The purpose of holding these hearings

         11  in our communities is because we want to make sure

         12  that everybody in our communities have the

         13  possibility and the opportunity to speak on this

         14  issue, because we are concerned that if we hold this

         15  hearing in City Hall, people may not be even capable

         16  or be allowed to come into City Hall this late. That

         17  was one of the purposes of holding these hearings in

         18  our communities.

         19                 My name is Margarita Lopez, I am the

         20  Council member of this district. You are more than

         21  welcome. Every person who wishes to speak will have

         22  the right to do so. You have three minutes to

         23  present your testimony. After three minutes you will

         24  hear that ring. We will be taping your testimony

         25  because we need this information for the City
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          2  Council and to put it in the record.

          3                 With no more, I leave you with

          4  Council Member Kathryn Freed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, thank

          6  you. I will also be very brief.

          7                 I want to welcome all of you here

          8  tonight. I think it is clear that one of the things

          9  that we wanted, there are several things I think we

         10  would like to get out of this. First and foremost,

         11  we want to hear from you, we want to hear your

         12  thoughts about what has been going on in the City.

         13  And as I was just telling someone, my own take is

         14  that we, not only do we have to reach out to each

         15  other and talk about this, let communities of color

         16  know that this is not just about race, it is about

         17  everyone, that everyone is injured, everyone bleeds

         18  when anyone bleeds in this City. It really is a

         19  question of if you injure one person, you injure all

         20  of us.

         21                 I think all of us feel, and we would

         22  like to hear this one way or another, to agree or

         23  disagree, but I feel that something has gone

         24  terribly wrong, and that it is time for us to take a

         25  very good assessment of the police force and of New
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          2  York City and of our relations with each other and

          3  certainly with the Police Department, and there may

          4  be a question of how far we are willing to go to the

          5  question of safety, and have we maybe gone too far,

          6  and certainly when someone is shot 41 times when

          7  standing on their own doorstep, we have to look at

          8  this. There have been a long series of incidents.

          9                 But I know that I hear from everyone

         10  in my district, both people of color and not,

         11  non-minorities, that there is a problem out there

         12  with the relationship with the Police Department,

         13  and we would like to hear from you tonight, and at

         14  least I would hope that we can send a message to our

         15  Mayor because we really hope that he is listening.

         16  Although he has been relatively hard to get through

         17  to, as you may know, it isn't just a matter of

         18  getting into City Hall, which is difficult enough

         19  even for us as elected officials, and almost

         20  impossible for everyone else, but we are hoping that

         21  as not only Manhattan, but hopefully the other

         22  boroughs, hundreds and thousands of people start

         23  showing up and talking about this, then maybe he

         24  will get the message that we have got to do

         25  something, and we have got to do it now, and we
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          2  don't want to have any more people die, we don't

          3  want to have any more people injured, we don't want

          4  to have any more people pushed around, and it is

          5  time that we get back to talking and get the Police

          6  Department to work with the community, and realize

          7  that we are all in this together.

          8                 Okay, and Chris, our newest member

          9  here. And congratulations for being newly elected.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         11                 Today I went to my hearing on my

         12  first sidewalk cafe, so I much happier to be here

         13  tonight dealing with this unfortunate topic, one

         14  that is actually far more important than sidewalk

         15  cafes.

         16                 I want to thank everyone for coming,

         17  and just reiterate that we are going to be here to

         18  listen, we are probably not going to ask a lot of

         19  questions. This is being taped so we can then as a

         20  delegation and with the staff of the City Council

         21  compile everything that everyone says and use that

         22  information to help direct us to legislative ideas

         23  and oversight of the Police Department to make sure

         24  that our legislative solutions, so-to-speak, are

         25  really informed by the real life experience of New
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          2  Yorkers.

          3                 I just want to take one second to

          4  recognize some of the folks who are here tonight.

          5                 First we are joined by

          6  representatives -- I just want to say the diversity

          7  of folks that are here really speak to the

          8  broad-based concern in the City about police

          9  community relations.

         10                 We are joined by Alan Gurson and

         11  Artie Strichler of Community Board 2, by members of

         12  the Coalition for -- well, let me do it all over

         13  again. Representatives of the Coalition for District

         14  2 Alternatives, folks from the Chelsea Reform

         15  Democratic Club, the Village Independent Democratic

         16  Club, reps from Community Board 4, former State

         17  Senator Catherine Abate, representatives from Dan

         18  Tannen Independent Democrats, Deborah Glick has a

         19  representative, Assemblymember Deborah Glick. We

         20  have two representatives, including the Chief of

         21  Staff, from Congressmember Nydia Velasquez' office,

         22  I am happy about that. Senator Tom Duane is on his

         23  way down from Albany, so he will be here soon. We

         24  are joined by our neighbors from 14th Street,

         25  representatives from Local 169 of Unite. And we have

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            9

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2  recently been joined by District Leader Aubrey

          3  Leeds. Oh, and I am sorry, the Chair of Community

          4  Board 3 is here. Sorry about that, Steven.

          5                 But thank you all for coming, and I

          6  am going to just give the mic now to Gifford Miller.

          7  Oh, one last thing. There are other hearings

          8  happening across the City. Tomorrow night there is

          9  one in Washington Heights. Tuesday there is one

         10  focusing on the concerns of the lesbian and gay

         11  community, and one at Riverside Church, so if you

         12  have friends who you think would like to come but

         13  couldn't make it here tonight, just call any of us

         14  and we can give you the dates and times and flyers

         15  to other public hearings.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Thank you,

         17  Christine.

         18                 I also want to mention that there is

         19  a representative of Borough President Virginia

         20  Fields' office here as well, and that I spoke with

         21  Congresswoman Carolyn Maloney, she is in Washington

         22  and she asked me to extend her regrets that she

         23  can't be here with us personally tonight. Sean

         24  Sweeney, President of DID, is here as well.

         25                 Let me just say very, very briefly,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            10

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2  because the purpose of this hearing is not for us to

          3  speak, but for you to speak and for the people of

          4  the City of New York to have an opportunity to speak

          5  out on this important subject, so let me just say

          6  that I came from the hearing that is also going on

          7  at this very same time in Harlem at North General,

          8  and I think that the purpose of this is so

          9  important, because there were hundreds of people at

         10  that hearing at North General, in fact so many that

         11  the people were literally being kept outside because

         12  they couldn't get in, it was an overflow. But people

         13  were speaking so powerfully. The second speaker

         14  there was a police officer, who got up and said that

         15  she was very, very concerned because she had spoken

         16  out about this problem within her police precinct

         17  and she had been transferred out of her precinct as

         18  a result of it, and that she knew there were other

         19  colleagues -- and that is an important point that we

         20  need to keep in mind here, that this is not about

         21  being against the police, it is about -- because all

         22  of us, we need police, we have to have police in the

         23  City of New York, but you want to support the police

         24  officers, the vast majority of them who do a good

         25  job, and make sure that we address those that do not

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            11

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2  do a good job, to say the very least.

          3                 And the second thing is that I think

          4  that the real purpose here is to put a human face on

          5  what this problem is. There was a gentleman there

          6  who got up and talked about the fact that he has a

          7  17-year-old son, and he doesn't let his 17-year-old

          8  son go out after 10:00 at night, because not for

          9  reasons he is afraid what will happen to him with

         10  his friends, but because he is afraid of what the

         11  police might do to him, and that is an extraordinary

         12  comment upon this City and the state of this City.

         13                 So, I look forward to hearing from

         14  you, I know my colleagues do as well, and I want to

         15  thank all of my colleagues for working so hard to

         16  put this event together.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You need to go

         19  and sign over there if you did not, and we are going

         20  to begin calling people.

         21                 Remember, it is three minutes per

         22  person, and the first person that had filled out

         23  this form is Abe Markman, from the Call For Justice

         24  Company.

         25                 MR. MARKMAN: Hi, everybody. And I
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          2  want to thank the Council members for calling this

          3  hearing of the Manhattan Delegation, it is very,

          4  very important.

          5                 One of the things that we want to do

          6  is put pressure on Giuliani to fulfill his own

          7  philosophy. His philosophy is you hold commissioners

          8  and directors of programs accountable for doing a

          9  job in their area of expertise.

         10                 He holds the police precinct

         11  commanders responsible for reducing crime in their

         12  districts. He and Bratton had invented a program

         13  called COMPSTAT, C-O-M-P-S-T-A-T. It has gotten

         14  national and international recognition as a model

         15  for other Police Departments.

         16                 What happens there is they give the

         17  police precinct commanders tremendous resources to

         18  know what to do.

         19                 For example, they give a computer

         20  printout. Let's say there is a car theft ring in

         21  their precinct, they sit down with the precinct

         22  commander, the captains, and they work out a

         23  strategy. Let's say to deal with this car theft ring

         24  they need the Street Crime Unit. So they bring in

         25  the Street Crime Unit, they give them all of these
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          2  resources necessary, but then the commanders are

          3  responsible. If they do a good job, it's on their

          4  record, they might get a promotion. If they don't do

          5  a good job, they are either demoted or they are

          6  transferred, and it is on their record.

          7                 The interesting thing, and this is

          8  where we all let Giuliani off the hook. The media,

          9  when Safir comes to New York 1 or anywhere else, no

         10  one asks them this question: why don't you hold the

         11  precinct commanders responsible for the crime, the

         12  abuse and the brutality by police officers?

         13                 (Applause).

         14                 MR. MARKMAN: Thank you.

         15                 Okay, well, what we have done is we

         16  have written a letter. We have written a letter to

         17  Giuliani and to Safir and to about 30 other elected

         18  officials, and to the people who may be running for

         19  Mayor. Of course, I don't know if we could ever get

         20  through to this one, but maybe there is another

         21  Mayor who can.

         22                 And then we are doing research. We

         23  did 50 youth workshops. I have the manuals here, Dos

         24  and Dont's When Arrested. And we found many of the

         25  young people have been pushed around, beaten and
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          2  harassed, sometimes even sexually harassed, and we

          3  are going back to these centers, we are speaking to

          4  the center directors, we are updating the

          5  information. We talked to Police Watch, and Police

          6  Watch, believe it or not, the lower east side has

          7  one of the fewest calls for complaints to police

          8  officers. So, take down this number and encourage

          9  people to call when there is any kind of abuse by

         10  police. Because we get that information and we want

         11  to go to the precincts in the lower east side, the

         12  7th, the 9th, 11th, and ask the commanders what they

         13  do with the deal with these police officers who are

         14  repeatedly abusing their authority.

         15                 The phone number is (212) 614-6454.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You, yourself,

         18  have experienced that?

         19                 MR. MARKMAN: Not myself.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: We want to

         21  introduce Manhattan Borough President that just

         22  arrived, C. Virginia Fields. You can come to the

         23  microphone.

         24                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT FIELDS: Thank you

         25  so much, Councilwoman.
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          2                 Good evening. Let me say, first of

          3  all let me thank the members of the City Council for

          4  bringing us together for this very important

          5  Speakout, and I will be brief, since I am also going

          6  to try to make the one at North General Hospital,

          7  and then of course there are several tomorrow

          8  evening.

          9                 This is in part for several reasons,

         10  because we all know and have heard the account of

         11  what happened, and I believe at this point we have

         12  to move on two fronts. Certainly the grand jury

         13  investigations must go forward. I think we all

         14  certainly look for it to be a timely one and

         15  efficient one and that will happen.

         16                 So, I have continued to call for

         17  actions in terms of other specific changes that can

         18  also take place at this time, changes that can be

         19  put in place by the Mayor and the Police

         20  Commissioner.

         21                 The good news about New York City is

         22  that we have been looked at from the perspective of

         23  police brutality, in terms of study upon study upon

         24  study, and have some excellent recommendations. The

         25  Mollen Commission Report, the report following the
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          2  incidents surrounding Abner Louima. The Dissenting

          3  Report. The New York City Council Committee on

          4  Public Safety report issued just a few months ago.

          5  All of these are excellent reports in terms of

          6  detailing recommendations as to what it is and can

          7  and do something about.

          8                 The unfortunate part, or the bad news

          9  part of this scenario is that they have been ignored

         10  repeatedly by this Mayor. They have not been

         11  responded to, and in fact, as we all know, the

         12  recommendations coming from the Abner Louima

         13  Commission were, in fact, just totally rejected out

         14  of hand, besides the fact that this was the

         15  Commission he put together, these were volunteers,

         16  and Councilwoman Quinn having been one of the

         17  members of that Committee.

         18                 So, we are at a point in New York

         19  City, I believe, that we just stand firm and have

         20  our voices heard from whatever we are, as elected

         21  leaders, as community residents, as caring and

         22  concerned people in this City. It is not just a

         23  perception by some people in this City that

         24  excessive force and mistreatment by police officers

         25  happened. It happens every day, and we cannot
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          2  continue to have our Mayor and Police Commissioner

          3  turn a deaf ear to what is happening in this City.

          4  We have worked too hard and many of us have looked

          5  too long to see this kind of division move forward

          6  and have the leadership of this City not listen nor

          7  respond.

          8                 I, as the President of the Borough of

          9  Manhattan, have consistently asked for meetings with

         10  this Mayor, not just around this incident, but

         11  around issues that affect us in this borough, and

         12  issues that my office have spent time working on,

         13  certainly with the Council members and with any of

         14  you to identify as issues of concern - the

         15  waterfront, economic development, Second Avenue

         16  subway - hosts of concerns, but with direct relation

         17  to what we are talking about tonight, there has not

         18  been a response to sit with leaders in this City or

         19  borough to talk about how do we move beyond this?

         20  How can we work together to bring about change?

         21                 So, I am of the opinion that a Mayor,

         22  and the Police Commissioner, in this instance

         23  obviously, are the ones who set the tone. So, if

         24  nothing else comes out of this meeting tonight, I am

         25  certainly calling upon all of you to insist that the
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          2  Mayor sets a different tone that speaks to the

          3  respect of all people in all residents of this City,

          4  irrespective of race, religion, ethnicity, sexual

          5  orientation, when it comes to fair treatment by this

          6  Police Department. We should not accept anything

          7  less.

          8                 And in doing that, I think we can

          9  move this agenda along in a much better way.

         10                 To conclude, we have issued again the

         11  specific recommendations that we believe if this

         12  Mayor and Police Commissioner would respond to, in

         13  terms of the work that had to be done in this City,

         14  adopting a formal anti-police brutality strategy

         15  with the same passions and the same zeal that the

         16  Mayor talks about crime having been reduced, and we

         17  all applaud that and have been pleased to have been

         18  a part of making it happen because the money that we

         19  put forward through the City Council and

         20  legislation, we are all proud of that, we are asking

         21  that he use that same zeal and compassion in

         22  fighting to reduce civilian complaints registered

         23  against police and to make sure that there is an

         24  anti-police brutality strategy in place and the same

         25  way as the police put an anti-police corruption
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          2  strategy in place.

          3                 We are calling for a diversity among

          4  the police force as it relates to race and

          5  ethnicity. In New York City we are at a time when

          6  over 60 percent of the population is reflective of

          7  African-Americans, Latinos and Asian, just a

          8  considerable less percentage of members on the

          9  police force represents the population.

         10                 There are some incentives that can be

         11  used in order to increase the diversity within the

         12  Police Department. We are certainly asking for a

         13  review of the Police Academy with respect to

         14  training and its curriculum. When you think about

         15  it, seven months of training, there are only ten

         16  days that police officers spend on a range in terms

         17  of firing, learning how to fire a gun. There is no

         18  time really spent in terms of helping them better

         19  understand how do you make those critical decisions

         20  at a moment when you don't know if it's a matter of

         21  life or death for you, but many officers do that

         22  every day.

         23                 Let's put that kind of training in

         24  place, and once a police officer comes out of the

         25  Academy, there must be some recommendations or
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          2  requirements for retraining. That is not happening

          3  today. Those are things that we can do something

          4  about.

          5                 And lastly, certainly to monitor the

          6  complaints against police officers, and that is the

          7  reason why the Civilian Complaint Review Board was

          8  established in the first place, and I, as a member

          9  of the City Council, one of the leading sponsors of

         10  that legislation, along with Councilwoman Ronnie

         11  Eldridge, Kathryn Freed and Tom Duane, of course who

         12  was in the Council at that time, we passed, and

         13  worked to pass that legislation and it has never

         14  been given the support that it needs in order to

         15  function.

         16                 So, again, the good news in all of

         17  this is that recommendations are there,

         18  recommendations that can work, the bad news is the

         19  Mayor simply refused to move on them, and I am

         20  calling upon all New Yorkers, people who are just as

         21  concerned about this as I am, people who know that

         22  we are a better City, we must show the world that we

         23  are a better City and will not allow the City to be

         24  divided, torn apart, and destroyed because a few men

         25  decide not to act.
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          2                 Thank you, and let's go forward.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you,

          5  Virginia.

          6                 Okay, first I want to recognize that

          7  our new Senator, Tom Duane, has joined us.

          8                 And the next speaker will be Ted

          9  Reich, from 87 Columbia Street.

         10                 MR. REICH: My name is Ted Reich, and

         11  I represent the Lower East Side Chapter of the

         12  Committees of Correspondence, a national

         13  organization. We commend and thank the three Council

         14  Members for holding this Speakout today, that's four

         15  Council Members.

         16                 In early March, 1996, Masertous

         17  Housing Development (phonetic) on Columbia Street

         18  was the scene of a massive police invasion. Hundreds

         19  of cops, many heavily armed, descended on the area

         20  following a robbery attempt and shooting in an

         21  elevator of an off-duty member of the police force.

         22                 For more than four hours residents

         23  were coming home and couldn't get into their

         24  apartments while the police combed the building

         25  going from apartment to apartment, terrorizing the
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          2  residents while in search of the perpetrator.

          3                 The murder of Amadou Diallo has

          4  dramatically brought forth to more and more people

          5  the truth nature of the role of the police in our

          6  City and our society. Should we blame the Mayor and

          7  his commissioner for this murder? Certainly yes.

          8  Should we lay the blame of Mr. Diallo's murder on

          9  the four cops directly involved and their superiors?

         10  Certainly, yes. But we must ultimately place the

         11  blame on the racist, capitalist system that values

         12  private property rights over human rights, the

         13  rights of exploiters over the rights of the working

         14  people, the poor and the disenfranchised. The role

         15  of the police is to protect private property, to

         16  protect the dirtbag landlord, the corporate

         17  polluters of the environment, the sweatshop owners,

         18  the drug kingpins, the big business corporate fat

         19  cats and their puppets who raise wars around the

         20  world in our names.

         21                 The City, state and federal

         22  authorities had longstanding plans for those who

         23  rocked the boat too much, for those who challenge

         24  their rotten system and who are tagged as enemies of

         25  the state and those they see as potential enemies,
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          2  the unemployed, the poor, young people,

          3  African-Americans Latinos, native Americans and all

          4  people of color.

          5                 From the deportation of foreign-born

          6  radicals in the early 1920s, they determined that

          7  Japanese-Americans in concentration camps during

          8  world war II to the readying of those same

          9  communists and those the government considered

         10  communists in the fifties to the massive lock-up of

         11  civil rights activists, Vietnam War protestors and

         12  so-called urban rioters during 1960s and '70s, their

         13  plans are in place.

         14                 This is all part of a plan. We have

         15  seen it here at Tompkins Square Park, even under the

         16  Dinkins Administration. I shouldn't say even under,

         17  but under the Dinkins Administration, the police

         18  occupation on 13th Street, including helicopters and

         19  the tanks on the street.

         20                 This type of police action is not

         21  new, and it is not something that has been developed

         22  by our current mayor, they have been going on for

         23  many, many years.

         24                 We support every action to make the

         25  police accountable, we support City residents
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          2  requirements in hiring. We support efforts to make

          3  the police force more reflective of racial, ethnic

          4  and gender composition of the city. We support

          5  meaningful racial and cultural sensitivity training.

          6  We support a truly independent Civilian Complaint

          7  Review Board with greatly expanded powers.

          8                 We support the dismantling of the

          9  notorious Street Crimes Unit and other units that

         10  specifically target political activists. We need

         11  more speakouts everywhere, in churches, in

         12  synagogues, in schools, in community centers and on

         13  the streets. We have community boards, and our local

         14  political leaders and our religious leaders to speak

         15  out. We need to put the Police Department under

         16  democratic public civilian control. We need

         17  democratic control of their policies, training,

         18  discipline and funding. We need the humane society,

         19  which puts people before propers, the majority, not

         20  the minority. And what puts tenants before landlords

         21  and workers before capitalists.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I am sorry.

         24  Have you been abused by the police? You, yourself?

         25                 MR. REICH: No.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          3                 From now on, every person who comes

          4  to speak through this microphone should follow the

          5  three minutes, because you are taking away from all

          6  of the members who want to speak here, okay?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  The next

          8  speaker is Lorenzo Brusol.

          9                 I just want to announce as he walks

         10  down that we have been joined by a representative

         11  from Comptroller Alan Hevesi's office and a

         12  representative from Councilwoman Ronnie Eldridge's

         13  office. She herself is at forum at North General

         14  Hospital, former City Council Member Miriam

         15  Friedlander, and a representative from the Gay and

         16  Lesbian Anti-Violence Project.

         17                 MR. BRUSOL: Thank you again, as

         18  everybody has done, Council members, for having this

         19  meeting. To answer your first question, yes, I have

         20  been a victim of abuse.

         21                 I was pulled over by an officer,

         22  given a couple of summonses, I asked to explain what

         23  the summonses are, and he did not explain, thrown

         24  out through the window, landed in the street.

         25                 My wife also has been a victim of
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          2  abuse. At that time I advised her what to do, went

          3  to Margarita's office, all items were removed.

          4                 Another situation we have now, my

          5  time here with you will be to read this out to you.

          6                 I attended John Jay College of

          7  Criminal Justice and have friends in law

          8  enforcement, including the New York City Police

          9  Department. I am well familiar with the law

         10  enforcement, procedures and risks of the job. I

         11  know, and I knew then, the failures of the job.

         12                 Look at what happened to the officer

         13  shot in the stairwell by a so-called crazy, excuse

         14  me, white man. I am not taking anything away from

         15  the sorrows of the families or the officer's family,

         16  but if the shooter was black or Hispanic, there

         17  would be other names or worse for him, perhaps maybe

         18  a different outcome.

         19                 I just can't, then again, maybe I do

         20  understand the outcry. I lost a cousin in a

         21  shooting. Although the event was started by a

         22  Correction officer, and it did involve my cousin,

         23  when the shooting started, she was not in the line

         24  of fire, nor was she armed, yet she was killed.

         25                 To me, I think the CO, correction
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          2  officer, deliberately shot at her, though it was

          3  never proven.

          4                 You may understand what happened, how

          5  it happened, but you cannot forgive them, the

          6  officers, they react in fear and prejudice, not

          7  necessarily racial, but nonetheless prejudice. They

          8  would say, man, they all look alike, black man and

          9  Hispanic standing at a corner waiting for a church

         10  bus? Yeah, right. If you own a beeper, then he must

         11  be selling drugs.

         12                 Seventy-five percent of the blame of

         13  the Bronx tragedy falls directly in the Mayor's lap.

         14  When you gave the police directly or indirectly a

         15  right to shoot first and ask questions later, Mr.

         16  Mayor, you were warned, pending problems you were

         17  warned about pending problems in your own committee

         18  and you failed to act on them. Now you are hiring

         19  the minorities - gee, good idea, but it's too late

         20  for the Diallo family.

         21                 You may recruit more minorities to

         22  the police force, but it is not the solution.

         23  Everyone passed the test, but once you are in, well,

         24  there are problems that begin. The internal maneuver

         25  of who you know.
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          2                 If not the merger of the Police

          3  Department, the Transit and the Housing Police

          4  forces in 1985, the Police Department would have

          5  remained 75 percent white officers. It is now 69

          6  percent white officers. The City is 25.6 percent

          7  black population, there is only 13.4 percent black

          8  officers.  The Hispanic community is 23.7 percent

          9  and only has 17.4 percent.

         10                 Yet, the fat is even better shown at

         11  a high command position, where 449 captains, 95

         12  percent are white and 237 inspectors and chiefs,

         13  only nine are black and ten are Hispanic.

         14                 Okay, I am sorry. I will leave this

         15  here for you guys.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         17                 Did you have testimony in writing

         18  that you would like to leave with us? We would

         19  appreciate that.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Our next

         21  speaker is our former great State Senator, Catherine

         22  Abate.

         23                 MS. ABATE: I want to thank the

         24  members of the City Council, as well as all of you

         25  who have come out tonight because you care about the
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          2  future of this City.

          3                 The issue of police abuse is one of

          4  the most critical issues of safety in the City

          5  today. Too many citizens and communities have lost

          6  confidence and trust in the New York City Police

          7  Department. Too many are in fear of the very people

          8  that have the duty to protect them. Not only do

          9  communities and individuals suffer, but also good

         10  officers in the Police Department suffer because

         11  they are painted with the same actions of the bad

         12  police officers.

         13                 I speak about this issue from some

         14  experience. I was the former Commissioner of

         15  Corrections in New York City, and I, too, had to

         16  struggle with excessive use of force in the jails. I

         17  know how difficult it is to eradicate this, but I

         18  also know that the only way to achieve success is

         19  that there must be strong and clear leadership at

         20  the top of the Police Department.

         21                 The message from the Police

         22  Commissioner should be loud and clear and

         23  uncompromising, that he has two priorities; one, to

         24  give all the resources to good police officers so

         25  they can do the job and eradicate crime, but the
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          2  same message should be at the same time as clear as

          3  the first, that in doing your job you must not be

          4  above the law, and you must show respect to all the

          5  individuals that you are giving the responsibility

          6  to protect.

          7                 If those messages are not equally

          8  heard by officers, then they get the feeling that

          9  it's okay to break the law.

         10                 So, it is also not about just coming

         11  up with solutions, there have been so many solutions

         12  since the 1960s and even in the 1950s, from the

         13  Louima Commission, from the Mollen and even the

         14  Knapp Commission. The solutions are there, what we

         15  need is sustained and strong leadership on the part

         16  of the Mayor and the Police Commissioner. And this

         17  leadership has to continue beyond the crisis, not

         18  just when we are not looking, it has to be the

         19  fundamental systemic approach of the Police

         20  Department, is to make sure police brutality becomes

         21  the exception, not the rule. We must see zero

         22  tolerance, the same zero tolerance that the Mayor

         23  shows for reducing crime. He must have the same zero

         24  tolerance for removing all police abuse in all

         25  communities around the City.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            31

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2                 I won't go through some of the

          3  solutions that have been talked about, I know many

          4  of you know about it. The only thing I can say is

          5  the Mayor needs to hear not just from a few

          6  individuals, not just from a few communities, but

          7  all diverse communities throughout the City. The

          8  pressure must be kept, until the day comes that all

          9  leaders of the City feel the same, and I mean all

         10  leaders of this great City feel the same pain, and

         11  suffering and anger as those who have been

         12  victimized.  We can reach that point if we don't

         13  give up, and I mean we stay vigilant, because this

         14  will be a problem that reoccurs, unless there is

         15  sustained leadership throughout the Department, the

         16  Police Department, and also from the Mayor.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been a

         19  victim of police abuse?

         20                 MS. ABATE: I don't know whether this

         21  is abuse, but I have been stopped in a car on the

         22  highway for no reason, and that has happened a

         23  number of times to me, over the course of many

         24  years.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          3                 The next person is Leslie Jones.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, we are

          5  also going to announce the next speaker who will be

          6  up next. The person who will be up next is Mark

          7  Staltz.

          8                 MR. JONES: Okay, one point I wanted

          9  to communicate was that I hope the City Council will

         10  not accept the Mayor's claim about drastic

         11  reductions in the number of various complaints to

         12  the Civilian Complaint Review Board. As part of my

         13  job I know how to work the telephone, I know how to

         14  follow through and complain, so when I get

         15  frustrated, when I get stymied by the Complaint

         16  Review Board, I can imagine what someone else would

         17  experience.

         18                 My most recent experience, I

         19  attempted to get a complaint to the Civilian

         20  Complaint Review Board.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Could you

         22  speak up a little bit, please.

         23                 MR. JONES: Sorry.

         24                 My most recent attempt trying to get

         25  a complaint handled by the Civilian Complaint Review
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          2  Board involved going to the precinct, being told

          3  that I will have to wait six hours, maybe longer, in

          4  order to get a number, a complaint number, which I

          5  felt was a total attempt to get me to leave the

          6  precinct, trying to wait them out, stayed there

          7  maybe two hours, and I said I will come back

          8  tomorrow, they assured me that I would get my number

          9  the next day. Went the next day, the next meeting,

         10  surprise, surprise, no record of my complaint was

         11  filled out.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Which precinct?

         13                 MR. JONES: Community North

         14  (phonetic). I gave no record of my complaint. I

         15  called the Civilian Complaint Review Board from the

         16  telephone in the lobby, they told me I should go

         17  back inside and demand a number. That is not exactly

         18  the type of advice you give somebody who is in the

         19  precinct, surrounded by police officers, it doesn't

         20  feel comfortable. So, it's not only the police

         21  officers giving you the run-around, but it's the

         22  staff, the receptionist, at the Civilian Complaint

         23  Review Board.

         24                 So when the Mayor or anyone tells you

         25  that the number of complaints that have been filed
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          2  with the Civilian Complaint Review Board have gone

          3  down, it is not necessarily that they are going

          4  down, it is only that there are so many roadblocks

          5  in order to get the complaint heard by the review

          6  board, and I hope that the City Council will

          7  consider that, as well.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been a

          9  victim of police abuse more than once?

         10                 MR. JONES: Yes, I have.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The next

         13  speaker is Morris Betowitz (phonetic), of Community

         14  Board 3.

         15                 MR. BETOWITZ: Hi. I am Morris

         16  Betowitz, I am a community activist and a volunteer

         17  in many organizations. Besides being First Vice

         18  Chair, I am also an auxiliary police captain for 25

         19  years, and I fear I will be retaliated against, and

         20  we will talk about it at the end, because I have

         21  been.

         22                 But what I wanted to thank the

         23  Council for is the work that they are doing on their

         24  oversight of the Police Department, and I want to

         25  bring up a couple of issues that need immediate
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          2  oversight, and bring this to their attention.

          3                 NYPD Community Affairs has stated

          4  that they will be making all precinct community

          5  councils adopt bylaws that they will promulgate.

          6  They state that since councils have the precinct

          7  name they make the rules, if that is not acceptable

          8  they told the community members to change the name

          9  and meet outside the precinct. There was a contested

         10  election in one precinct, and I will give you the

         11  information afterward, and they came in to take over

         12  and ruled who could vote since no one could come up

         13  with bylaws.

         14                 A lot of people are very unhappy

         15  about the election. As of this moment they still

         16  have not provided copies of the bylaws that they

         17  were working under.

         18                 Shouldn't an independent group such

         19  as the New York City Council Public Safety Committee

         20  working with NYPD come up with the bylaws for the

         21  entire City?

         22                 2) There aren't enough police

         23  available for precinct duties, as you have been

         24  fighting with them. In one precinct there were two

         25  community affairs officers, there are now only one.
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          2  Thus there aren't enough coverage for all of the

          3  community activities, such as the community board

          4  committee meetings where we need their input.

          5                 Other precincts that do have two

          6  community affairs offices also find themselves being

          7  stretched and unable to cover community activities

          8  because of their regular police duties.

          9                 3) Community leaders aren't invited

         10  to precinct management meetings, which was a prior

         11  Police Commissioner and Administration's initiative.

         12  We used to be able to sit down with the police

         13  captain and senior officers to work out problems

         14  that occurred during that month in the community.

         15  That does not happen anymore.

         16                 And finally, number four, better

         17  communication between Community Boards and NYPD.

         18  Community boards should be kept more informed by

         19  NYPD on their activities, their impact on the

         20  community when at monthly or bi-monthly district

         21  cabinet meetings. Senior ranking officers should be

         22  attending, in addition to community affairs

         23  officers, and sometimes community officers didn't

         24  show up, community affairs officers.

         25                 So, those are the basic four areas I
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          2  wanted to bring to your attention.

          3                 Now, as far as the issue of

          4  retaliation and harassment --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Before when you

          6  mentioned the previous Commissioner, which

          7  Commissioner?

          8                 MR. BETOWITZ: Right before Safir.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Thank you.

         10                 MR. BETOWITZ: Now, as far as the

         11  issue of retaliation, I will tell you a couple of

         12  the items very quickly.

         13                 They tried to have me thrown off the

         14  community board, where Norman Siegel had to come in,

         15  and many of you know, because you are involved with

         16  this, and they didn't even have rules for police

         17  officers not being on community boards, but they

         18  make special rules for me. So that was reversed.

         19                 They brought me up on charges within

         20  the auxiliary police program for doing things that I

         21  had been doing for years, helping save other

         22  people's lives, and go into other districts to help

         23  them do that.

         24                 I was investigated for my grant

         25  money, which I received from New York State Assembly
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          2  Speaker and from NYU and some of the other Council

          3  members were starting to give me funding, and they

          4  tried to pressure me that way.

          5                 I was effectively demoted. I am still

          6  a captain, but they put another person on top of me.

          7  They removed my vehicle, despite the protest of the

          8  same elected officials that are sitting here, and

          9  curtailed our ability to save lives. And they also

         10  curtailed, more importantly, the ability to bring my

         11  rescue squad to all your districts, which I used to

         12  be able to do to save people's lives and our

         13  response time was far greater, better, than EMS did

         14  and the Fire Department's response time.

         15                 Thank you very much.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: The next person

         17  up that is due to speak will be Adam Honickman.

         18                 MS. SCHLESINGER: My name is Lois

         19  Schlesinger, I belong to also the Call for Justice,

         20  that Abe Markman mentioned, and also a group called

         21  CODA which is a non-affiliated group in the lower

         22  east side, very active in politics. At the present

         23  time I am a candidate on the local slate for

         24  District 1 School Board, and my remarks will concern

         25  children.
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          2                 When we have children, out of care

          3  for them ourselves, parents, guardians, whatever, we

          4  know how difficult it is to tell them be careful,

          5  don't talk to strangers, don't take candy from

          6  strangers, don't let someone call you over to their

          7  car. Then we wonder, can we teach our children --

          8  they have to trust somebody, what do they do when

          9  they are in trouble? Who should they go to? Who

         10  should they talk to?

         11                 In the past, police officers, what we

         12  called cop on the beat, used to be people, the

         13  children, we could tell them that if you are in

         14  trouble, go find a police officer. And the parents

         15  felt the same way too.

         16                 This Local District 1 encompasses

         17  elementary schools and junior high schools, and if

         18  we are honest, we all know the behavior of 11, 12

         19  and 13-year-old boys, that is hardly always

         20  considered the best behavior, right? They do stupid,

         21  silly things. But now we are in a crisis situation.

         22  The boys, or girls for that matter, do things, and

         23  if the young children cannot look to the police for

         24  protection, what are the parents going to tell them?

         25                 And these children, pre-teens, call
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          2  them what you will, also are really seriously

          3  hampered, they act out, they do stupid things, as I

          4  said, but they are being punished and being harassed

          5  in a way that never happened before.

          6                 And so, I really want to call to your

          7  attention how important it is where we have to do

          8  something to restore trust in the police.

          9                 Some people say, well, they are all

         10  bad, I don't like them -- no, you can't do that. We

         11  have to appeal to the police for their own safety,

         12  for their own security, they have children, too. And

         13  if they want the children to respect them and to

         14  treat them as somebody that will protect them, that

         15  can help them raise their self-esteem.

         16                 Thank you for listening.

         17                 I just want to, and I am going to

         18  give the blown-up article to the members here. There

         19  was an article about the security, using police in

         20  the schools, and that is a subject to controversy

         21  through the community and I am sure among many of

         22  you.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been a

         25  victim yourself?
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          2                 MS. SCHLESINGER: No. I have been a

          3  victim of rudeness, I have been a victim of

          4  dismissal, I have been the victim of going into a

          5  stationhouse and the sergeant not being cooperative,

          6  not writing the complaint down.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And Mr.

          8  Honickman, when you get in, just state your name

          9  before you start speaking.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And after that

         11  is Bob Coler.

         12                 MR. HONICKMAN: My name is Adam

         13  Honickman, and I am here to bear witness.

         14                 I am a white, middle-aged Jewish man,

         15  and currently I don't fit within the profile. Fifty

         16  years ago we did, and we could again.

         17                 I would like to talk about numbers of

         18  people that I have seen who have been abused on the

         19  streets.

         20                 For example, I work as a paralegal. I

         21  was working at Pfizer, which is a drug company on

         22  42nd Street. There was a young man who was visiting

         23  his mother, between Second and Third Avenues on 42nd

         24  Street. He was bringing lunch to his mother. He was

         25  dressed in khaki pants, a young man. Two cops jump
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          2  out of a police car, shove him against the wall,

          3  food goes all over the place, and they are about to

          4  drag him into the car.

          5                 I called security from Pfizer, they

          6  came out, they called his mother down. Evidently

          7  somebody about ten blocks away had committed a

          8  crime. He was a black male. They jumped out, why are

          9  you doing this? I had to stand there, I had to say,

         10  okay, I am taking down your numbers, I am going to

         11  make sure that we take your jobs away for you. They

         12  stopped. They did not shove him into the police car.

         13                 You know, we tried to pursue it with

         14  the precinct and they ignored this.

         15                 A friend of mine, who is HIV

         16  positive, who lives up in Harlem, goes out at 3:00

         17  in the morning to go get a pack of cigarettes, not

         18  the best health thing, but he wanted a pack of

         19  cigarettes. He was wearing red pajamas and a

         20  raincoat. There was a problem in a subway three

         21  blocks away, cops went and arrested him, because

         22  obviously, you know, they thought he had done the

         23  crime because he was profiled.

         24                 It is pretty shameful. I worked as a

         25  bartender for many, many years, and sitting down in
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          2  the bar and hearing police officers say and this is

          3  verbatim, that they like the new nightsticks at that

          4  time because they had a steel rod in them covered

          5  with plastic, because the wooden ones would break

          6  over Afro-Americans' heads, because Afro-Americans'

          7  heads, and they didn't use that word, were hard.

          8                 I also have two police officers who

          9  live in my neighborhood who have been like fathers

         10  to the people who live in my neighborhood, and there

         11  are some of them that I would like my son to grow up

         12  to be like, I am bearing witness.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been a

         14  victim of police abuse?

         15                 MR. HONICKMAN: I have not been a

         16  victim of police abuse, because I, you know, do not

         17  fit the profile. However, I go to Midtown North and

         18  basically they look at me like I am from Mars.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Robert Reiss.

         21                 MR. COLER: Hi. My name is Bob Coler.

         22  To answer the question have I ever been a victim of

         23  police brutality; 30 years ago I was in the

         24  Stonewall riots when the cops rioted.

         25                 I have always said I don't know if
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          2  that deserves applause. None of us got dressed and

          3  showered to go to a riot that night, it just sort of

          4  happened. I guess I am a little proud of the fact

          5  that I was one of the organizers of the Gay

          6  Liberation Front, which was the beginning of the

          7  Lesbian and Gay Radical Movement, as we know it

          8  today.

          9                 That was 30 years ago, this year is

         10  the 30th anniversary of both of those things and

         11  very little has changed.

         12                 A few months ago, at the October 19th

         13  political funeral for Matthew Shepherd, there were

         14  6,000 people, the cops rioted again, 139 people were

         15  arrested, and many were injured when they drove

         16  their horses into the crowd and literally assaulted

         17  and beat people with their clubs.

         18                 I am going to be very brief, I am

         19  going to make two announcements. One you may know

         20  about. We are having another political funeral for

         21  BillyJo Gather Monday, at Columbus Circle, at 6:00.

         22  We are going to Times Square and convening at --

         23  ending up at Bryant Park, if we get there.

         24                 The cops' main complaint the last

         25  time was we didn't have a permit and that is why
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          2  they were so upset. We couldn't get a permit, we

          3  would have not had a permit. As the cops allowed us

          4  to march, we would have been down the street in one

          5  half an hour. It was three hours later, 139 people

          6  arrested and about 90 brutalized, people with AIDS

          7  were denied medicine. This is probably going to

          8  happen again Monday, unfortunately.

          9                 My last announcement, it is the

         10  anniversary of the Stonewall riots, it is the

         11  anniversary of the Radical Movement, we are having

         12  an alternate march this year, as opposed to the

         13  Heritage and Pride Parade that goes up and down the

         14  streets for straight people. We are having a

         15  political march during Pride Week and it will be a

         16  march against police brutality and against what is

         17  going on.

         18                 One last thing. Right now I have gone

         19  to every rally for Amadou Diallo. I see the same

         20  faces. I see the Lesbian and Gay community, I see

         21  the African-American community and I see the Latino

         22  community. I do not see white faces, I do not see

         23  straight people. Where are you all? Why aren't you

         24  organizing in your neighborhoods? Why isn't every

         25  community board organizing and there at the
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          2  community board? White people, white straight

          3  people, and not doing their job. I am sorry, but you

          4  are not. And the same faces were there 30 years ago

          5  saying oh, right on right on, and you have forgotten

          6  it and you will forget this. I am saying, get out

          7  there we need you desperately.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Recently have

         10  you had any abuse?

         11                 MR. COLER: Recently?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         13                 MR. COLER: Aside from the Matthew

         14  Shepherd political funeral?

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Yes.

         16                 MR. COLER: That was four months ago.

         17  Yes, I was.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Mr. Reiss or

         20  Rice.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The next will

         22  be Annie Wilson.

         23                 MR. REISS: Yes, good evening, ladies

         24  and gentlemen. I come up to report something on a

         25  more modest scale. I have been ticketed, I have
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          2  marched for 30 years, and we all hold out that

          3  future period when we will have amity and commonty

          4  in this good, fair city. There has not been a month

          5  that I haven't been walking the streets in my native

          6  Manhattan and I have not seen police intimidate or

          7  harass people. And whenever I do, and I have done so

          8  since I was 16 and 17, I have always sought to

          9  gently intervene and interpose myself.

         10                 Just last month I was walking on

         11  Union Square at about noontime. There were a number

         12  of high school students, I believe from Washington

         13  Irving High School. A policeman passed by, he said

         14  please leave. Move on. Go away. And I said, sir, do

         15  you realize that you are abridging their right of

         16  freedom of association? And he just sort of looked

         17  blankly. And so I addressed him a second time. Do

         18  you realize that we all are guaranteed the freedom

         19  of association? You are enfranchised to uphold the

         20  constitution of the bill of rights, not to abrade

         21  it. Well, of course my tactic was to sort of confuse

         22  him, and assuredly he was, and I said, sir, please

         23  allow them to congregate, it's their lunch hour,

         24  they have every right to. And he, of course, started

         25  to intimidate me.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            48

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2                 My point is, I am sure I have seen

          3  this every month of my life since I was 16, very few

          4  people equally interpose themselves and intervene as

          5  a citizen ought to do. And so, while we march and

          6  petition and ticket for our grander hopes, I think

          7  we should all encourage one another to be good

          8  citizens and samaritans, and wherever we behold

          9  these aggressions against our fellow citizens, we

         10  should say, sir, madame, you are here to uphold the

         11  Bill of Rights.

         12                 Thank you very much.

         13                 MS. PENNINGTON: I am Norma

         14  Pennington. Annie had to leave and she said she had

         15  submitted written testimony to the Councilwoman.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay. The next

         17  is Jessica Carmona Biaz.

         18                 MS. BIAZ: Hi. My name is Jessica, and

         19  I am from the International Socialist Organization,

         20  and I just want to start first by saying, no, I

         21  haven't been abused yet by a cop. I know my time is

         22  coming, given the record, but I saw what they did to

         23  people protestors on the political funeral for Matt

         24  Shepherd. I see the way they intimidate and harass

         25  New Yorkers whenever we want to use our right to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            49

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2  free speech and protest whatever it is we feel that

          3  the government is doing. They barricade us off like

          4  a bunch of animals any time we want to protest

          5  public policy.

          6                 And I think if you look at what the

          7  media has been doing, you know, like especially

          8  Giuliani trying to isolate what happened to Diallo,

          9  you know, as an isolated incident and trying to make

         10  it look like it is a few bad apples, I think it is

         11  totally wrong.

         12                 You know, Abner Louima, Anthony Biaz,

         13  these cases happen in working class areas, they are

         14  happening to blacks and Latinos, you don't hear

         15  about these cases on the upper west side. This is an

         16  attack on, you know, multi-racial working class

         17  people, and I think we are being a little bit soft

         18  here. A 22-year-old man was murdered. Okay, we need

         19  to set some demands. These four cops should be

         20  arrested, there is no excuse for that.

         21                 There has been a demonstration either

         22  in the Bronx or at City Hall almost every day this

         23  has happened, I think we should use that and talk

         24  about how we should organize in the communities and

         25  start a sustained anti-police brutality movement in
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          2  the village, in the Bronx and in Harlem. You know,

          3  get these cops on the defensive, like what happened

          4  after Abner Louima when 30,000 people marched over

          5  the Brooklyn Bridge, the arrest rate went down by a

          6  whole lot because the cops were put on the

          7  defensive. That is what we need to do here. I think

          8  we should talk about that some more.

          9                 How can we organize a community of

         10  response networks here in the Village so that we can

         11  be ready to defend ourselves any time the cops want

         12  to act up.

         13                 And I just want to make one really

         14  quick announcement. My organization is putting out a

         15  conference this Saturday up at Columbia University,

         16  and one of the speakers is Amadou Diallo's aunt, and

         17  also Iris Biaz, whose son, Anthony Biaz, was

         18  murdered by the cops as well. They are going to be

         19  speaking to us there at that event, and we are going

         20  to be talking more about how we organize anti police

         21  brutality in this City.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Lee Wengrath,

         24  and she will be followed by Manerva Ohupia.

         25                 MS. WENGRATH: Hi. My name is Lee
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          2  Wengrath. I am also a member of the International

          3  Socialist Organization, like Jessica, who just

          4  spoke. And I just want to say, first of all, one

          5  thing: People talked at the beginning about that

          6  Giuliani isn't listening to people in New York right

          7  now. Not only is he not listening, he has actually

          8  been going on the offensive. Giuliani has put 600

          9  more cops on the street since Diallo was murdered.

         10                 What else has he done? Guiliani has

         11  also come out and called for hollowpoint bullets?

         12  These bullets are going to rip into people's bodies

         13  and destroy them. Well, that may be better for the

         14  NYPD, but it is certainly not better for us.

         15                 And Jessica talked about raising some

         16  demands, I am just going to add to that list,

         17  besides arresting those four people who killed

         18  Diallo, I say let's go beyond that, let's disband

         19  the Street Crimes Unit. These are roving thugs who

         20  are responsible for actually terrorizing people in

         21  neighborhoods like Soundview, like the Lower East

         22  Side and so on, and enough is enough.

         23                 Also, no more hollowpoint bullets,

         24  okay? And I am sorry, Guiliani, this is something

         25  that Giuliani has been talking about for some years.
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          2  And I might add, aided and abetted by federal Crime

          3  Bill money from Clinton as well to put hollowpoint

          4  bullets and riot gear in the hands of the NYPD; and

          5  finally, you know, no more 48-hour rule. Why should

          6  the cops be entitled to a whole separate set of laws

          7  than ordinary citizens, right?

          8                 These four people who murdered Amadou

          9  Diallo are sitting, being paid, given a paycheck

         10  right now and have not been responsible for getting

         11  one single word of accounting for their whereabouts.

         12  And I think the question is these are demands that

         13  we can win.

         14                 Jessica said there has been people

         15  every single day in the Bronx, at City Hall and so

         16  on and the anger is certainly there, and the people

         17  are saying again and again, why is this happening?

         18  We don't have to take this anymore. And I think the

         19  civil disobedience that Al Sharpton did last week,

         20  that is inspiring, but it has to go beyond symbolic

         21  civil disobedience, and to actually continuing to

         22  pull into, you know, people from our unions and our

         23  community centers, into a more sustained response.

         24  And let's have a sit-in at the City Council. We have

         25  got City Council members here, I am sorry, but
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          2  Giuliani has turned his back on us for too long and

          3  we can put the weight of the momentum in the City

          4  behind us and stop the kind of disgusting behavior

          5  and the priorities that this Guiliani Administration

          6  has been all about.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been

          8  involved in a police abuse?

          9                 MS. WENGRATH: I have been harassed

         10  and had problems with the cops on demonstrations.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         12                 MS. OHUPIA: I am Manerva Ohupia

         13  (phonetic), I am the District Director for

         14  Congresswoman Nydia Velasquez. Unfortunately she

         15  could not be here this evening, she had to be in

         16  Washington for a vote.

         17                 However, I want to thank the Council

         18  for inviting her. She wanted her voice to be heard

         19  in solidarity with you against police brutality, and

         20  wrote a statement which she asked me to please come

         21  here and share with you this evening.

         22                 It is as follows: I would like to

         23  thank the members of the Manhattan Delegation of the

         24  City Council for holding these forums.

         25                 This is an important opportunity for
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          2  all of us to express our feelings regarding the

          3  shooting of Amadou Diallo, which has torn our

          4  community apart. And while the emotional healing

          5  takes place, this is a chance for us to talk about

          6  the larger, more widespread issue of police

          7  brutality and civil rights abuses.

          8                 We can work to heal the community

          9  from the immediate shock of this tragedy. But in

         10  order to move past this particular instance, we must

         11  remember that this is not an isolated occurrence.

         12  What happened to Amadou Diallo is part of a large

         13  epidemic of police brutality that is eating away at

         14  the core of our nation and City.

         15                 This is a tragedy that the police,

         16  the City government and federal leaders must take an

         17  active role in addressing so that we do not find

         18  ourselves back in the situation in a week or a month

         19  or a year mourning the loss of another brother,

         20  another sister, son or daughter.

         21                 Following the shooting, I joined the

         22  Congressman Charles Reingall and other members of

         23  the New York Congressional Delegation, and sent a

         24  letter to Attorney General Janet Reno urging a

         25  comprehensive inquiry into this matter.
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          2                 We must focus attention on this

          3  issue. And I want you to know that I will continue

          4  to work to bring awareness to the issue of police

          5  brutality, as I did in 1997 when I convened

          6  congressional judiciary committee hearings in New

          7  York City following the beatings of Abner Louima

          8  after his wrongful arrest by the New York City

          9  police.

         10                 Our streets are not safe if

         11  minorities have to live in fear of the police. It

         12  does no good for leaders to talk about falling crime

         13  rates, if the police then turn around and perpetrate

         14  crimes against the citizens.

         15                 And the fact that with sharp

         16  reductions in crime have come increased complaints

         17  from minority communities about police brutality

         18  tells us that we are facing an ongoing challenge

         19  that people in our communities feel at a very deep

         20  level.

         21                 This is why we must keep up the

         22  pressure, and not only bring awareness to the issue,

         23  but turn awareness into action.

         24                 I want you to know that I will

         25  continue to work with you as we fight this battle.
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          2  It is my hope that we can arrive at solutions before

          3  yet another member of our community must die.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Is Drew Kramer

          6  here? Okay, Drew Kramer?

          7                 MR. KRAMER: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Great. And just

          9  before you start, let me just say a few words. We

         10  would like to thank both Doug and Jim who are the

         11  Sergeant-at-Arms tonight from the City Council for

         12  doing a great job, as usual.

         13                 MR. KRAMER: Good evening. My name is

         14  Drew Kramer. I am the Executive Director of the

         15  Lower East Side Harm Reduction Center.

         16                 My cause for speaking tonight is to

         17  essentially report on an ongoing problem. I would

         18  like to report on an ongoing problem we see at my

         19  program, mainly the routine harassment by the police

         20  of our agency's participants, volunteers and staff.

         21  So routine that we have come to lose count at this

         22  point.

         23                 In addressing this issue with the

         24  police I have been told that, oh, absolutely not,

         25  you know, we are not targeting your agency, but
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          2  after, for example, one of my staff members who made

          3  the mistake of hugging a friend he hadn't seen for

          4  awhile, while on his way to work one day, when that

          5  action resulted in his being stopped, searched and

          6  asked to produce ID, one in a chain of countless

          7  events, I really have to question that assertion by

          8  the NYPD.

          9                 Our agency works hard to provide

         10  life-stabilizing services to folks who don't have a

         11  lot of other options, and if these folks were to

         12  come to believe that by being seen leaving our

         13  agency they were flagging themselves for harassment,

         14  I think that we could probably close our doors and

         15  open up a coffee shop instead.

         16                 The tragic thing that is for many of

         17  the low-income folks that we see, that we serve, you

         18  know, they don't come to us when they are harassed

         19  by the police, because it is a very commonplace

         20  thing. It's a fact of life. It's a fact of being

         21  poor in New York City. It's what you get for walking

         22  down East Third Street.

         23                 A dear man who we have known for many

         24  years around our agency who comes in to get out of

         25  the weather when it is cold, recently he had all of
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          2  his worldly possessions taken from him. His crime

          3  was basically being homeless.

          4                 We are scrambling to get for him, you

          5  know, blankets, some gloves, some socks, because it

          6  is cold outside.

          7                 He wasn't arrested, it was just

          8  confiscation of stuff that, you know, was probably

          9  littering the sidewalk.

         10                 Thank you very much, and I really

         11  appreciate the members of the City Council to pull

         12  together this effort this evening.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been a

         14  victim of abuse?

         15                 MR. KRAMER: I have been bonked on my

         16  head while participating in civil disobedience

         17  arrests, and when I lived on Tompkins Square Park in

         18  1990, I was asked to produce ID before I was allowed

         19  to walk down the street where I lived.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: The next

         22  speaker is Rick Hill, and he will be followed by, it

         23  looks like Theresa Gutierrez.

         24                 MR. HILL: My name is Rick Hill. I

         25  have been a victim personally of police abuse and am
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          2  currently suing the City for unlawful arrest and

          3  detention, malicious prosecution and police

          4  brutality.

          5                 I was leaving Washington Square Park

          6  in July, a sunny day, in '97, and I stopped to ask

          7  the cop a question, what's the bike regulation? And

          8  the cop got very difficult and said if you keep this

          9  up I will arrest you. And I said for what?

         10  Disorderly conduct, and by the way, get off the

         11  grass, which many people were on.

         12                 I went home about a block away where

         13  I lived for ten years, I returned in 15 minutes and

         14  approached that officer and another officer. I said

         15  may I please speak with your supervisor? Three

         16  times.

         17                 They moved around me. Cuffed me. I

         18  said what are you doing? You are under arrest. I

         19  said for what? They said disorderly conduct, said

         20  one. Disrupting the peace, said another. Another cop

         21  appears, a Parks cop appears, I am placed in a

         22  cruiser. I am taken to the 6th Precinct. I demanded

         23  to be released. I didn't ask to be released, I

         24  demanded to be released. They asked for my Social

         25  Security card, they wanted to photograph me,
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          2  fingerprinted me. I refused. I had essentially been

          3  kidnapped by the state in some Cop nightmare.

          4                 I was taken to central booking

          5  downtown. They finally just kind of went crazy and

          6  they said, look, if you don't agree to be

          7  photographed, we will take you to Bellevue. We went

          8  to Bellevue. I was chained to a wheelchair and

          9  interviewed by a nurse, two psychiatric med students

         10  and a psychiatrist. They understood exactly what had

         11  happened.

         12                 I returned to Central Booking and

         13  finally arraigned. I am informed of the charges;

         14  resisting arrest, disorderly conduct and assault 3.

         15  I had touched no one. I had asked two very

         16  reasonable questions, on a sunny day in Washington

         17  Square Park, ten yards from the arch.

         18                 I went through the process. It took

         19  nine months, the thing was finally dismissed. I

         20  refused to cop a plea, and while I was down there I

         21  saw black and Hispanic males largely have to waste

         22  days of their life in this idiotic process and

         23  demeaning process, and forced to cop pleas because

         24  they have a wife and children and because they can't

         25  do much.
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          2                 So, I am currently suing the City. I

          3  didn't go to the Civilian Complaint Review Board

          4  because of what everybody told me, it was Mickey

          5  Mouse.

          6                 So, that is my story, and everything

          7  they say - I am afraid about the cops in New York

          8  City - I have found to be true, from observation and

          9  from my own direct experience.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.

         11                 Theresa Gutierrez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: She is not

         13  here. She left.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: She left.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay, Verena

         16  Reich, followed by Fidalis Dear.

         17                 MS. REICH: Verena Reich. I was a

         18  victim of police harassment. I was terrorized at the

         19  Mazurich Tower invasion.

         20                 One of the things that I would like

         21  to say that we need to do is, we have to understand

         22  that this is what is going on, the U.S. has a policy

         23  that we have been telling other people that we have

         24  to uphold international law, and we talk about our

         25  democratic values, and what we have to say is that
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          2  the police state tactics that is being used in this

          3  City has been used in other countries and before we

          4  call this, that they were police state tactics. We

          5  have in South America and in other countries we have

          6  police roaming around and they have been called

          7  "death squads". We have something now called "We

          8  Own The Night", the police own the night, it is very

          9  similar.

         10                 When you have the amnesty

         11  international, everyone should try to get a hold of

         12  that report, www.rightsforall.org, to get a copy of

         13  that report. It is amazing the kind of thorough

         14  examination that they have done. So that we have to

         15  understand that it is not just civil rights. Some

         16  people, when you lose your rights, your human rights

         17  are being violated. The 48-hour rule, it has got to

         18  go. That is one thing that we have to formalize, it

         19  has got to go.

         20                 We have to change our tactics. We

         21  have to do concrete things, either go to City Hall

         22  to develop new laws for their contract when it comes

         23  up, the 48-hour rule has to be eliminated.

         24                 When we talk about having more police

         25  of color, that is fine. We have to go toward that.
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          2  But you have to understand, the South African

          3  apartheid government had less police officers that

          4  carried out their police state tactics also. So, we

          5  have to be careful when we talk about that.

          6                 I don't want to use any more time. I

          7  just would like you to go to www.rightsforall.org,

          8  and get the Amnesty International report.

          9  Www.rightsforall.org, that's one word.

         10  Www.rightsforall.org. That is the Amnesty

         11  International report on New York City police.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Fidalis Dear

         13  was called, to be followed by Flora Raminowski.

         14                 MS. DEAR: Hi. My name is Fidalis

         15  Dear, I am with the International Socialist

         16  Organization.

         17                 I just want to say, I am only 22

         18  years old and this past month has some of the most

         19  horrible and some of the most inspiring things at

         20  once.

         21                 I mean, the thought of 41 bullets in

         22  an innocent man who just worked his 12-hour day and

         23  was unarmed, had no criminal record, I mean it shook

         24  us all up. I mean, I have never had any illusion in

         25  what the cops are here for, but it gets to a point
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          2  where it is too much.

          3                 At the same time, the last, you know,

          4  more than a month later I have been to college

          5  demonstrations, I have seen again and again people

          6  coming out to say, you know what, it is not just

          7  enough that I am angry, I can't take it anymore and

          8  we have to do something about this.

          9                 I want to echo some of the things

         10  that people have said, we actually need a concrete

         11  demand, you know, I think a network in the village

         12  would be a good idea. I know I have met quite a few

         13  people that have been, you know, brutalized by the

         14  cops here in the village, people who are interested

         15  in that should definitely talk to me afterwards and

         16  we should see if we could figure out some sort of

         17  way to get together a network.

         18                 I think some of the demands, like no

         19  to the hollow-tipped bullets, the 48-hour rule,

         20  dismantling the Street Crimes Unit, of course,

         21  indicting these four cops, is something that should

         22  fuel the demonstration after demonstration.

         23                 And finally, I just want to say, I

         24  think all of this anger that exists right now, like

         25  the way I see it, it's the tip of the iceberg. I
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          2  think for most people in New York it represents, you

          3  know, Diallo isn't just Diallo, he is Abner Louima,

          4  he is Anthony Biaz, he is every black person that

          5  walks down the street and is afraid, you know,

          6  afraid of the cops, and I think, like in New York

          7  City you walk over homeless people all the time and

          8  you have the richest neighborhoods in the world here

          9  as well, I think that the cops come from that

         10  inequality. It's not just a few bad apples, that

         11  actually is part of, you know, it is what they are

         12  there for, to maintain that sort of inequality and

         13  to keep people down. And I think like it is exactly

         14  the demonstrations that have been happening that

         15  show the way forward. You know, I just want to say,

         16  like Guiliani, I go right on the bandwagon to talk

         17  about what a disgusting man he is, but I don't think

         18  it is just republicans, it's democrats and

         19  republicans again and again in every election trying

         20  to out-talk each other on crime, you know, Schumer

         21  and D'Amato, Clinton death penalty act, and I think

         22  that is why we need actually a grassroots movement

         23  from below to force him to listen to us.

         24                 I have been a victim of countless

         25  harassments and physical intimidation on
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          2  demonstrations, and even just petitioning I get

          3  harassed all the time.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Next is going

          6  to be Flora Raminowski, and after that Julias

          7  Dickson, and Council Member Freed has to go to

          8  another appointment, and we will be joined by her

          9  Chief of Staff, Maria.

         10                 So, Flora and Julius, are they here?

         11  Okay, you are?

         12                 MR. DICKSON: Julius.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I guess Flora

         14  is not here, okay.

         15                 And after Julius Dickson is Phillipe

         16  Simon.

         17                 MR. DICKSON: Julius Dickson. I have

         18  been a victim of police hit. There was a contract

         19  put out on me because I had been involved in really

         20  trying to police my community. I was involved in

         21  community affairs and so forth, but I was stepping

         22  on toes. Obviously certainly the people wanted the

         23  stuff going on in the community, so I was getting in

         24  the way.

         25                 And one day, my brother had passed
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          2  away, we were going to his wake, and an opportunity

          3  lent itself for a police presence, and that is a

          4  tactic of the police, you know, they will get there

          5  and then one person that knows what is really going

          6  on, they will do a call to bring out a whole bunch

          7  of other police, and then you have all of these

          8  innocent police that maybe don't know what is going

          9  on, and the next thing you know there is a malaise

         10  see, and maybe about five real perpetrators, you

         11  know, know the real deal and they are trying to kill

         12  you, and the other ones are just in it, because it's

         13  the police, and you know, we all have to stick

         14  together. And they thought they had me dead, you

         15  know, but lucky for me God was with me and I

         16  survived.

         17                 I did suffer some permanent damage,

         18  you know, I had mass on my brain and things like

         19  that. And for a long time, it took me a long time to

         20  speak out, I was very inhibited and I was afraid,

         21  you know? And of course I have other things going on

         22  within the court system, which brings me to another

         23  topic.

         24                 See, our problem, and I heard a lot

         25  of good things going on, but legislation is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            68

          1  MANHATTAN DELEGATION SPEAKOUT

          2  important, because also, you know, they are not free

          3  from all of this either. They can pass certain laws

          4  that put police in check, but then you also have the

          5  judicial part of the government.

          6                 My nephew right now, he has done

          7  almost ten years, he is doing 30 years, because he

          8  was railroaded.

          9                 I was at his trial from the beginning

         10  to the end, and I saw how, you know, the court, this

         11  judge just denied his rights and he didn't stand a

         12  chance, and now a young boy at 16-years old, you

         13  know, he is not going to get out of jail until he is

         14  49.

         15                 I was on the subway one day, and this

         16  guy wasn't doing anything. Nothing. And the police

         17  went for his revolver and started to pull it out.

         18  And I guess if the guy wasn't doing nothing, maybe I

         19  wouldn't have jumped up and tried to get between

         20  them. But he was doing nothing. And I jumped up and

         21  I yelled no. So, it's judicial, we have to solve the

         22  problem with the courts, and legislation.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Next we have

         25  Phillipe Simon. Oh, he left, okay.
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          2                 Vicki Jacobs. And after Vicki Jacobs

          3  is Keith Krandal, and after Keith Krandal is Alberto

          4  Gomez? I can't really read the last name.

          5                 MR. GOMEZ: Gomez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Gomez, okay.

          7  Sorry.

          8                 MS. JACOBS: Hi. I am Vicki Jacobs, I

          9  work for Lower East Side Needle Exchange. I started

         10  out over ten years ago as a volunteer here in the

         11  street, because I thought that just because you are

         12  a drug user, it didn't mean that you had to have a

         13  death sentence necessarily. I thought that because

         14  you were a drug user it didn't mean that you had to

         15  necessarily die from HIV or contract other STDs or

         16  hepatitis from use of dirty needles. And then when

         17  we became legal we started branching out into other

         18  kinds of services and started doing acupuncture

         19  detox, which I still do to this day.

         20                 So, I have been watching this kind of

         21  social scene, involved for quite a while now, and it

         22  has come into my mind now, I am starting to get drug

         23  users as kind of an apartheid population, you know,

         24  a population that is segregated from everybody else,

         25  and systemically oppressed, it doesn't seem to have
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          2  any civil rights whatsoever.

          3                 In the Exchange we see many different

          4  kinds of people, black, white, Hispanic, whatever,

          5  and now kind of the pressure is on us, we are under

          6  surveillance all the time. Some of the stuff that

          7  Drew talked about, we are really feeling the

          8  pressure and our clients are feeling the pressure,

          9  and they are coming to us with a lot of horror

         10  stories.

         11                 So, I want to tell you two stories

         12  from this end of the spectrum. One is a Hispanic

         13  male that I have known for many years, HIV positive,

         14  who was busted with medical marijuana, and when he

         15  was in jail something happened, I think he gave

         16  somebody a cigarette or whatever and a Corrections

         17  officer came and took him to a private cell and they

         18  broke a couple of his ribs. And he has been through

         19  some of this before, he almost keeps it in a

         20  cavalier fashion. I am not shocked of anything

         21  anymore, I will tell you.

         22                 The other side of the spectrum is

         23  somebody I have also known for many years who was a

         24  white middle class male, who is a $50,000 a year

         25  systems analyst, who was busted after buying two
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          2  bags of heroin uptown in a roadblock. The car was

          3  taken away, they called his job, he was fired from

          4  his job. Now he thinks he can't get unemployment

          5  insurance. His whole life has been pretty much

          6  destroyed in five minutes, and it is devastating.

          7                 So, we see it is kind of moving to

          8  the class now, except it seems to me if you are on

          9  Park Avenue and you still get your drugs delivered

         10  to the door, it is kind of a different situation for

         11  you.

         12                 Oh, one more story, very briefly. An

         13  acupuncture client of mine who came just to detox

         14  from cigarettes, who was followed by the cops to

         15  Fifth Street, which is a dead end, and threatened.

         16  His address book was gone through, he was accused of

         17  doing drugs, which this guy does not do at all. So,

         18  he has never come back, so this is a way of

         19  harassing our clients who come for our services, and

         20  they will say it is fearful.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been

         23  abused?

         24                 MS. JACOBS: Yes, I have. On both

         25  coasts.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Keith Krandal,

          3  and then Alberto Gomez and then Alan Spurg.

          4                 MR. KRANDAL: Hi. My name is Keith

          5  Krandal, I am a member of Community Board 2.

          6                 Earlier this evening I went up to

          7  141st Street and Madison Avenue in Harlem, where

          8  there was a -- well, I wouldn't call it a similar

          9  meeting, actually, the whole atmosphere was

         10  different.

         11                 First of all, I couldn't get a seat.

         12  As a matter of fact, I couldn't even get into the

         13  room. As a matter of fact, I couldn't even get up to

         14  the floor where the meeting was being held. That is

         15  how angry people are. I spent about 45 minutes in

         16  the lobby of the building where the meeting was

         17  held, about 45 young, mostly male African-Americans,

         18  and they were angry. And they were talking about

         19  their experiences with the police. And I saw that it

         20  was hopeless for me to expect to get in because that

         21  is how crowded it was. So, I decided to come down

         22  here and I can tell you from the atmosphere here, it

         23  is somewhat different. You have to understand that

         24  something really important is happening up there. It

         25  was jammed. People up there were ready to be there
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          2  and to listen and to talk and to testify. Isn't that

          3  Al Sharpton, it's young people from the streets who

          4  are just terribly upset, and I think we have to work

          5  with our brothers in Harlem and work together. Bob

          6  Coler, is Bob still here? No. Bob Coler put it very

          7  well, we have to get involved, those of us who are

          8  white and middle class and downtown.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been

         10  abused?

         11                 MR. KRANDAL: Yes, Margarita, I have

         12  been harassed and beaten by the police.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         14                 MR. GOMEZ: Hi. My name is Alberto

         15  Gomez, I am from Brazil. I have been in this country

         16  for about 15 years. I live in New York. Now I am

         17  finishing my graduate school in clinical social

         18  work. And police brutality has been an issue that

         19  has been entertaining my mind, I even decided to

         20  write my dissertation on this issue.

         21                 When that lady said about the death

         22  squad in South America, she was probably referring

         23  to Brazil. That exists, it is the Police Department.

         24  I saw people die on the streets, I saw Cuban, poor

         25  Cubans, poor people die on the streets on a daily
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          2  basis. And I can see that something like that could

          3  happen here in New York very easily, if we people,

          4  concerned citizens, lose sight of our mission to

          5  defend each other against corrupt systems here.

          6                 I think that Giuliani is running the

          7  City, he called it "my City", that is not his City,

          8  it is our City here. And another thing that I can

          9  see that he is doing, it's like I came from an

         10  oppressed system in Brazil, like many other

         11  countries in South America, Asia, you know, other

         12  countries, and people are struggling to survive. I

         13  came here with the hope of a better life. I am

         14  getting my education, receiving my Ph.D eventually,

         15  but I see that this man is like a crazy dictator.

         16  You know, running a City out of control,

         17  disrespecting human citizens, disrespecting human

         18  beings, not concerned about anything except being

         19  power. And now he is running for Senate, what kind

         20  of representation do we have in congress if we have

         21  Giuliani there? We have to think about that very

         22  well.

         23                 As a future social worker in this

         24  City, and I will be here for a long time now, I hope

         25  I can storm some things eventually in the future
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          2  here, because I would like to see people stand up

          3  for their rights, speak up and say what you are

          4  feeling inside. You know, what is it all about? Why,

          5  we people, stay so silent and keep this inside?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Alan Spurg.

          7  After Alan is Margaret Littleton, and after that

          8  Melva Matz.

          9                 MS. MATZ: I am Melva Matz. I am a

         10  mother of two, I live in Chelsea. I am a business

         11  owner, I have a restaurant. I was a victim of police

         12  brutality, October 1987. I know I seem like an

         13  unlikely candidate, but it doesn't take much to tick

         14  off a cop and have them do some things that you

         15  don't want them to do.

         16                 I was basically asking for help from

         17  a policeman. He didn't want to help me with a noise

         18  problem from a motorcycle bar. He just was

         19  belligerent and rude to me. Anyway, I won't go into

         20  that.

         21                 Finally I said, could I have your

         22  name, please, sir. He ignored me. The driver mumbled

         23  something to him, and unbeknownst to me he started

         24  to drive away. My finger was in front of airspace,

         25  his arm was outside the door, on the door, and as
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          2  they lurched forward, my finger brushed his sleeve.

          3  Well, that was it. He jumped out, threw me against

          4  the car, frisked me, handcuffed me, said "you

          5  fucking bitch, don't fucking touch my badge."

          6                 I am not supposed to be talking about

          7  this because I am suing the City for illegal arrest

          8  and illegal strip search and abuse.

          9                 I went to Criminal Court, I was taken

         10  back to the precinct, I was strip searched, I was

         11  held for several hours. Luckily I had my husband, I

         12  told him to call a friend in the neighborhood who

         13  happened to know of a few cops at the precinct, I

         14  think that is the only reason I was given a desk

         15  appearance ticket. I refused and I would recommend

         16  to anyone to refuse an ACD. Do not accept an ACD.

         17  This is the way they get off.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: What is that?

         19                 MS. MATZ: A contemplation of

         20  dismissal. It's like coping a plea. It's like

         21  saying, oh, okay, slap my hand, I will be good for a

         22  month and then you will drop charges. Well, they

         23  don't really drop charges.

         24                 So, I went to Criminal Court, I hired

         25  a Criminal lawyer. I went to court three times, the
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          2  judge dropped the charges and said, you know, what

          3  kind -- I was charged with a misdemeanor and also

          4  obstruction of governmental administration. That is

          5  a misdemeanor, disorderly conduct and assault.

          6                 The police claim that I jumped into

          7  the police car, so far as to hit the head of the

          8  driver, pound the chest of the sergeant who was

          9  sitting close to me, okay? And you know, and then I

         10  jumped back out and stood there and waited for them

         11  to arrest me.

         12                 I know I don't have that much time.

         13  But basically I went to Criminal Court, they dropped

         14  the charges, my lawyer said, look, go ahead to the

         15  CCRB, it is so clearcut, I mean who is going to

         16  believe the police, it is such a far-fetched story,

         17  they had a witness - bull shit. Okay? We have got to

         18  overload. We have got to totally dismantle that

         19  CCRB, it is a crock of shit. And it makes me very

         20  angry, more angry than the arrest, because basically

         21  these cops were totally vindicated, the woman that

         22  did the investigation, she put words in people's

         23  mouths about me, about my character, trying to

         24  assassinate my character, and then on top of it

         25  basically lied. Lied. I mean, it will probably be
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          2  brought out in the press at a later date, but I

          3  think that that is the most important thing, that

          4  there is not accountability. You know there is

          5  always going to be bad cops. There is always going

          6  to be bad doctors, there is always going to be bad

          7  lawyers, you have got to have accountability and it

          8  has got to be just and it can't have any kind of

          9  City involvement or police involvement, that's it.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Next is Robert

         11  Jurasky, it looks like. And after Robert is

         12  Catherine Roberts, and after Catherine is Gloria

         13  Weber.

         14                 MR. JURASKY: My name is Robert

         15  Jurasky. I don't live down here but I work down

         16  here, and I was assaulted by a police officer, I

         17  filed a complaint with the CCRB, it went nowhere,

         18  through two appeals. They didn't bother to interview

         19  one of the witnesses, I had two witnesses to my

         20  assault, and there was one police officer who

         21  testified for himself, obviously.

         22                 I don't think that is unusual, there

         23  is a case recently of a judge who dismissed charges

         24  against a police officer who had assaulted a man at

         25  DMV in Brooklyn, and the officer, the Judge's name
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          2  was Rivera in Brooklyn, and there were five

          3  witnesses to the assault of this man whose eye

          4  socket was fractured in this attack on him. They had

          5  gotten into an argument and the police officer

          6  attacked him, beat him up, and when two more

          7  officers came to ask what is going on, because he

          8  was in plainclothes, he said don't worry, it's a

          9  police matter and kept beating him up, and these

         10  charges were dismissed by the judiciary. So, I agree

         11  that there are problems at the judiciary in terms of

         12  addressing these problems.

         13                 But Mr. Reich mentioned earlier that

         14  there was actually symptomatic of a war against not

         15  only minority but against the poor. Our neighborhood

         16  down here is being gentrified and you have a police

         17  force that is providing private security details to

         18  speculators who are coming into our neighborhood and

         19  showing a thriving community center to be dismantled

         20  because a speculator got the bid, why are the police

         21  working for the speculator? Why can't he hire his

         22  own private police force?

         23                 Why are we facilitating, why are our

         24  legislators in the City Council facilitating the

         25  gentrification of this neighborhood, creating
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          2  supposedly non-profit housing, which has an 80/20

          3  split in favor of market development, when this

          4  neighborhood doesn't have 80/20 split of people who

          5  are able to pay market rates on their housing. Why

          6  isn't our housing, our development, in this

          7  neighborhood representative of the demographic here?

          8  Well, I know why, because Giuliani is creating a

          9  white Manhattan, and neglecting the people in the

         10  City.

         11                 MS. ROBERTS: My name is Catherine

         12  Roberts. I am obviously a senior, and yes I have

         13  been a victim of some abuse.

         14                 When I first moved to the City, I

         15  would very active in the civil rights movement, and

         16  I was at a legal parade and was dragged to a police

         17  car and then they decided they would let me go. I

         18  already had gray hair.

         19                 Then I am also a person who has

         20  recovered from mental illness, and if there is

         21  anyone who has been abused by the police in the

         22  City, it is the mentally ill. And I can tell you,

         23  that I am in the process of working with the

         24  Department of Mental Health because I am a chair of

         25  the Manhattan Mental Health Council on an
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          2  anti-stigma campaign, I live with stigma every day

          3  of my life, and I have been at a rally in City Hall

          4  Park called Mental Health Awareness when I was

          5  refused permission to leave the Park by one of the

          6  exits when everyone else was leaving, apparently

          7  because I had a button on "let's talk about mental

          8  health". I was thrown against a fence, and into a

          9  large puddle of water, it was a very cold day. It

         10  didn't make me very happy.

         11                 But I am also here as a senior,

         12  another group that is being abused and people don't

         13  realize it. And I heard here tonight the term crazy.

         14  Please don't use that term.

         15                 I come from a very small town in

         16  Maine, and my family worries all the time about my

         17  living in this City, because I go everywhere and

         18  come home late at night. I chair the Human Services

         19  Committee in Community Board 4, and I tell them I am

         20  not afraid of my neighbors or the people on the

         21  streets, I am becoming afraid of the police. And

         22  when you see that list of people that have been

         23  abused, let's not forget Elinor Bumpers.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And the time

         25  that you indicated that you were approached, did
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          2  they file charges against you?

          3                 MS. ROBERTS: No, they didn't file

          4  charges against me, because my Council Member Tom

          5  Duane came along and said she is not bothering

          6  anybody.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: After Gloria,

          8  is Forest Telas, I am sorry if I am saying that

          9  wrong. And then after that is Ann Arland, and after

         10  Ann is Arthur Manims, and after Arthur is Chris

         11  Goken.

         12                 MS. WEBER: My name is Gloria Weber,

         13  and I am here to encourage legislators, people who

         14  we have elected, to please do something and fight

         15  for us.

         16                 I am a mother, I live in the lower

         17  east side, I have two children and a husband, a

         18  family, and what I see happening in the City is

         19  completely distressing me. I mean, it is disturbing

         20  me to the point where, I mean, I don't know -- my

         21  daughter is living in Brooklyn, she has constantly

         22  been stopped with her husband just for no reason at

         23  all. My sister, who is a teacher, has also been

         24  stopped.

         25                 I went to the Police Department
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          2  because I lost my license. When I left the Police

          3  Department I was dressed, fully clothed, when I

          4  turned around and left there were two policemen

          5  standing there and they spoke to me in a manner in

          6  which they had no right, it was totally

          7  unprofessional and unprovoked, because I was not

          8  dressed in any way that would encourage someone to

          9  say anything to me in a way like that. So, right

         10  away you are talking about a totally unprofessional

         11  group of people who think that they can just do

         12  anything and say anything to anybody.

         13                 And what I want to say is, I have

         14  traveled a lot in Europe and I have lived in

         15  Germany, and I am Puerto Rican, I am a black woman

         16  Puerto Rican, a black Puerto Rican. So, I am a woman

         17  of color and I am talking about my family, many

         18  people in my family where they have either been

         19  threatened, have young nephews who I have to be

         20  afraid of, so we are constantly in fear living in

         21  our family. We are mixed race family, okay? I have

         22  lived in Europe, and the thing I want to say to

         23  everybody here is that, when I was in Germany and I

         24  have lived around a lot of Germans, I know the

         25  German story very, very well, and what I see going
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          2  on now reminds me so much of that, and I am saying

          3  what is happening is they are dividing people. They

          4  are saying we are the blacks, Amadou Diallo is only

          5  black -- I don't go to rallies because I have to

          6  work. I have been going to rallies, my husband has

          7  been taking time to go to rallies, and what do we

          8  see there? It is all the same people. People have

          9  just said that. And I want to reach out to the

         10  community, that is why I came here, I want to just

         11  reach out and say, please, people, don't get caught

         12  up in racial issues, it's a human issue. We need to

         13  stand up and we need to let people know in this City

         14  that we are human beings and we have the right to

         15  live. We have the right to live and the police, I

         16  mean they are actually acting like death squads.

         17  Read the papers. This is not a case of like, oh,

         18  well, maybe they need manners. No, we are talking

         19  death squads. Four cops are walking around free,

         20  okay? Free. And nobody is doing anything about it,

         21  and right now they are throwing out trial balloons

         22  to try to get people to forget it, okay? They want

         23  it to die down, they figure we will forget it. This

         24  is what is going on.

         25                 They are looking for excuses right
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          2  now of how they are going to get these cops off. And

          3  I am telling you, if these cops don't get arrested

          4  and don't pay for this, we are all in serious

          5  trouble. Because when they finish with the poor,

          6  okay, when they finish with the poor, and they are

          7  going, they are wiping them out, we are the ones

          8  that are next, okay? That is the way I feel about

          9  it. I just want people to wake up. Wake up. Wake up.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         11  also recognize that we have been joined by another

         12  one of our downtown district leaders, Arthur

         13  Schwartz.

         14                 MR. TELAS: All right, Forest Telas,

         15  and I reside in Tribecca, on Duane Street, and one

         16  of the major issues is, as someone said don't take

         17  an ACD, and the justice system. I was given a

         18  summons for nominally obstructing seating in Duane

         19  Park at 8:20 on a Saturday morning, 8:20 on a

         20  Saturday morning, about 42 degrees, two people

         21  sitting in the Park talking and a dog. And the

         22  police came up and said ostensively from demeanor

         23  and manner, get the f--- out of the park. I asked

         24  him why. Well, this was Saturday morning recycling,

         25  I supplement my income, which I don't really have,
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          2  by picking up bottles, cans, magazines and things

          3  and recycling actually, real recycling. So, he said

          4  no carts allowed in the park.  Said excuse me, show

          5  me the statute.

          6                 Well, then they went into conference,

          7  the two policemen. Then he came back and he told me

          8  stolen property, he said because I was using a

          9  postal cart, which you find on any construction site

         10  and all over this City. So, I said, well, I am using

         11  this cart, but when I finish I am here between Third

         12  Street and Canal Street Stations, and I will take it

         13  back. It is property of the postal office. I haven't

         14  covered it or painted it or disguised it or

         15  anything. I said, besides, it is the province of the

         16  postal police, you can save me the trip, you have a

         17  radio. Conference. Then they come around, so then

         18  they got intimidating. He pulled out the cuffs, he

         19  pulls out the spray and they tried to push the cart.

         20  He said, you have ID? I said yes, which I need not

         21  by law tender to you. Show me the statute, I might

         22  show you the ID. Oh he got madder of course, a

         23  little redder in the face. Now, I know having my dog

         24  with me that supposedly they are supposed to take

         25  care of the dog should you be processed, but we know
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          2  that they euthanize them. So, I wanted to protect

          3  the dog, I submitted the ID.

          4                 I was given a court date. The court

          5  date came, I went to court, they called me, I stood

          6  up, a voice said I recommend ACD. I said, excuse me?

          7  Who are you? Who asked you to insinuate yourself

          8  into my affairs? Where did you come from? And the

          9  little lady just said something about I am court

         10  advocate. They said dismissed. Because this was on

         11  the 22nd of December and they were trying to clear

         12  the calendar.

         13                 Now, in my 57 years, I don't drive, I

         14  have never had anything to do with police. I don't

         15  know ACD from ABC, you know? So, what happened was,

         16  that therefore I had to take this ACD, which she now

         17  tells me is a plea. So, I had to cop a plea, I mean

         18  they forced it down my throat. What I did discover,

         19  because I wanted documentation to go to CCRB, which

         20  when I went to the station they discouraged me in

         21  every way, and so I still haven't filed that

         22  complaint. But you should file a complaint because

         23  it goes on their record, I am told.

         24                 Now, one last thing. So that what

         25  happened is that when I went to get documentation,
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          2  which is a record of the proceeding, I saw the back

          3  of the original summons. Now my summons looks like

          4  this, it says nothing, and you read hard, maybe you

          5  can see the so-called obstruction of seating. But on

          6  the back it said had in his possession packages,

          7  parcels and cart belonging to the United States

          8  Postal Service. This is a federal felony charge. Why

          9  wasn't I arrested? Where is the evidence? This is

         10  writing in the computer. Should I fail to pick up my

         11  doggy's poop, and I come before the court again,

         12  then I got this heavy level thing on the back here,

         13  which he wrote to justify who is writing the

         14  summons, of course which is a lie. So they are

         15  criminalizing people, and what they are doing, they

         16  are using the Gomfliat Gambit (Phonetic) or the

         17  Potempkin Principles (phonetic), all of this

         18  business about reduction of crime, you inflate crime

         19  as a big balloon, and then you deflate it.

         20                 MS. ARLAN: Hi. My name is Ann Arlan,

         21  and I am a member of Community Board 2, Manhattan. I

         22  am chair of the Environment and Public Health

         23  Committee, and it shouldn't escape anybody's

         24  attention or notice that this is a public health

         25  issue.
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          2                 What I am here about today is to tell

          3  a story. In 1986, I think on the 8th of July, I was

          4  walking down Sullivan Street, which is in a

          5  primarily Italian neighborhood, my neighborhood was

          6  built by Italians. It's a wonderful neighborhood, I

          7  love it.

          8                 A member of our Community Board, John

          9  Ferry, came up to me and he said did you hear what

         10  happened on the 4th of July, and I said, no, I did

         11  not, and he said, well, a whole bunch of people were

         12  beaten up and arrested in the playground at the

         13  corner of Sixth Avenue and McDougal Street, and they

         14  were very badly beaten, they were held for 36 hours

         15  for having a fireworks display. There were 17 people

         16  arrested.

         17                 So, I said, well, has anybody taken

         18  pictures of their injuries? I am a photographer. And

         19  tell them that I will photograph them, if they wish.

         20  I came back, my tape machine was full of phone

         21  calls, and I went on the 11th and photographed them.

         22  Now, I just want to show you two photographs here.

         23                 This is a young man. The young man's

         24  name is Sean. Lived on Bedford Street. He was one of

         25  the boys and men in the playground who were setting
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          2  off fireworks. About 11:00 at night the lights were

          3  cut in the playground and a number of plainclothes

          4  cops carrying baseball bats and tire irons came into

          5  the playground and started beating people up.

          6                 His mother was sitting across the

          7  street, Irene Vaughn, she ran across Sixth Avenue to

          8  try to save him. They slammed her to the pavement in

          9  the playground, they did what I call the Michael

         10  Stewart maneuver on her, they pulled the tire iron

         11  my against her clavicle, she couldn't speak for six

         12  weeks, and then they beat on her. I think you can

         13  see the marks of the beating on her back. They did

         14  this because she tried to help her son. She didn't

         15  do anything to them. She tried to help him.

         16                 Subsequently she actually died. She

         17  was very bruised across her chest, she got breast

         18  cancer and died. You can't say that that is

         19  causation, but her health was never the same after

         20  this incident, nor was the family the same. And the

         21  fireworks which had gone on for 30 years before

         22  that, because it was an Italian -- it was the custom

         23  of that block to do fireworks on the corner in that

         24  playground, safely done, everybody outside except

         25  the people who were doing the fireworks, but that
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          2  was never done again, and the police were offended

          3  that it had been done to begin with.

          4                 You know, the people who did this

          5  were a public morals squad. It was not the 6th

          6  Precinct. People in the neighboring buildings called

          7  the 6th Precinct with a cop in trouble code in order

          8  to get some uniformed cops in there.

          9                 Now, these people were all arrested,

         10  they were taken down. Eventually some of the rest of

         11  us in the neighborhood got involved, Catherine

         12  Abate, her husband, Braughn Kligerman (phonetic) and

         13  a man named Ed Copeland from Rabinowitz and Bodine,

         14  who were a good civil rights law firm. We persuaded

         15  these people who were terrified and didn't want to

         16  do anything about it to do something about it. And

         17  eventually they did get some money from the City.

         18  But, you know, I mean, I will tell you how I felt.

         19  After I had said that I would photograph these

         20  injuries, you know, nobody is doing anything to me,

         21  I was scared to death. I thought if I photograph --

         22  I mean, I did this impulsively and then I thought

         23  after all the names are on my tape and I thought if

         24  I photograph these people the cops are going to come

         25  after me and I felt like I was in El Salvador, which
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          2  we had set up in certain ways in our image. And then

          3  I thought am I going to let them take my

          4  neighborhood and my life because I am too afraid to

          5  stand up? And I think that is where we are at. I

          6  mean, everybody tonight who said we have got to

          7  stand up, they are right. We have got to stand up.

          8  We can't pretend this isn't happening.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been

         10  abused?

         11                 MS. ARLAN: I have been in

         12  demonstrations where I have been corralled and

         13  shoved in a way that, you know, sometimes they will

         14  do it, like what they want you to do is kind of move

         15  on, and other times they do it like they want to

         16  build up so much pressure and give you no way to get

         17  out. I have been in situations like that.

         18                 And beyond that I will say, you know,

         19  being terrified, you know, I think we have to think

         20  about that. You know, shutting up.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Is Arthur Mimms

         23  here? And after Arthur is Chris Goken. And after

         24  Chris Goken is Samantha Leapis.

         25                 MR. MIMMS: I want to make sure the
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          2  Council will hear everything, and I want to comment

          3  on about what the lady said about ACD.

          4                 For one thing they turn around in the

          5  courts and they will turn around and they will give

          6  you a court appointed lawyer and their claim, well,

          7  you stay out of trouble, be a good nigger for six

          8  months or so, and everything will be washed away.

          9  What those bastards don't tell you is they send them

         10  to the FBI, and those pricks never throw away

         11  anything, so your fingerprints are constantly set on

         12  file along with John Dillinger, John Gotty and God

         13  knows who else, until you die. That is what they

         14  don't tell you, the Police Department and the

         15  Courts, I blame them for this system as well.

         16                 I think our Mayor is a petty,

         17  vindictive thug and punk, and I think that our

         18  Police Chief is a flunky and they can take their

         19  boards and their graphics and they can shove them.

         20                 The Million Youth March, when the

         21  choppers swooped down, the Matthew Shepherd March,

         22  when they took out the leaders of the march, is an

         23  occupied army. We don't have a police force, we have

         24  an occupied army in this City, that's what it is.

         25  It's an occupied army. They are white, they do not
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          2  live in this City, they think everybody in this city

          3  is either white trash, a nigger or a spick, that is

          4  the Police Department of the City of New York, many

          5  of them, including Midtown North, one of the worst.

          6                 Diallo was killed because he was

          7  black, and a black man to too many people in the

          8  Department, walking at night is obviously up to

          9  something. There is no such thing as a black man on

         10  his way to get a pack of cigarettes, on his way, he

         11  must be out stealing something, doing something he

         12  has no business, and the feeling is go ahead and

         13  kill him because after all, he looks suspicious. All

         14  blacks look suspicious, that I have noticed the only

         15  suspicious white man is Christopher Walkins, all

         16  blacks look suspicious. That I have noticed in

         17  Giuliani's City. Go ahead and kill us, because nine

         18  out of ten we have all been arrested before and a

         19  long rap sheet will probably come out. And spin

         20  doctors, along with the PBA, an organization that

         21  supposedly represents whites, blacks, Hispanics,

         22  Asians, gays, lesbians, you know, a straight -- if

         23  you look at the PBA, it looks like the 1956 White

         24  Citizens Committee of Macon, Georgia.

         25                 And the reason why I know I am
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          2  telling the truth is right this minute you and I

          3  both, everybody in this room, we all know you will

          4  not see four black police officers sitting in a car

          5  in Howard Beach, Bensonhurst or Fifth Avenue

          6  claiming We Own The Night, roaming around looking

          7  for young white men to throw up against the wall.

          8                 I will leave you all with the CCRB is

          9  the biggest frigging joke in the City of New York. I

         10  was there the day when the lawyer from the Matthew

         11  Shepherd case, and I looked at them and I thought to

         12  myself, guys get ready to hear a whole bunch of

         13  unsubstantiated, unsubstantiated, unsubstantiated.

         14  They are a joke. They need to be dismantled. They

         15  need to be pretty much told, kids, pack up your

         16  fucking marbles and go home. That is basically about

         17  it.

         18                 Thank you very much for hearing me

         19  out.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been

         21  abused?

         22                 MR. MIMMS: Yes, I have. WWB, walking

         23  while black. Yes, I have.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Chris Goken.

         25                 MR. GOKEN: Christopher Goken, from
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          2  the New York City Gay and Lesbian Anti-Violence

          3  Project. Actually I have a very tough act to follow,

          4  but first off, ADP applauds the Council and

          5  Delegation for holding these hearings. I did attend

          6  a hearing up in Harlem. It was well attended, as

          7  this one was, there were about 200 people there and

          8  people waiting outside trying to get in, and it was

          9  great to hear the stories of people that have been

         10  stopped and frisked all over this City and abused by

         11  the police all over the City.

         12                 For those of you who don't know, ADP

         13  is a crime victims services agency, we help gay,

         14  lesbian, bisexual, transgendered and HIV positive

         15  crime victims in the City with a 24-hour hot line. I

         16  will write the number up before I sit down.

         17                 In the past couple of years, ADP and

         18  other organizations have noticed a marked increase

         19  in the reporting of police misconduct cases, which

         20  probably means police misconduct is severely on the

         21  rise.

         22                 In response to that, ADP started a

         23  community police relations initiative about a year

         24  and a half ago to deal with this issue in the gay

         25  community, and that is the program that I run now.
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          2                 We offer counseling, advocacy, some

          3  legal services, legal support and other things like

          4  that.

          5                 A couple people have mentioned a few

          6  of the cases in the past couple of months. I am not

          7  going to repeat them, but I will just briefly run

          8  through them. Obviously the Diallo shooting is on

          9  everyone's mind. But let's not forget that people

         10  who were protesting on Fifth Avenue over Matthew

         11  Shepherd, the Police Department treated them as a

         12  riot in progress and used riot-control techniques

         13  for people that were holding candles and holding

         14  signs in remembrance of a man beaten to death in

         15  Wyoming.

         16                 Let's not also forget that people

         17  protesters in Harlem at the Million Youth March were

         18  also subject to similar tactics by the Police

         19  Department, and just in November, a transgendered

         20  woman and her entire family was beaten by Housing

         21  Police Officers in the South Bronx.

         22                 So, there is a trend here, it goes

         23  all throughout the Police Department, how they deal

         24  with individuals, how they deal with groups of

         25  people, particularly how they deal with certain
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          2  communities in the City, people of color, youth, the

          3  gay and lesbian community, transgendered people. And

          4  the Council, I think it is important for you to take

          5  us a step back, these hearings are incredibly

          6  important to give people an opportunity to be heard.

          7  Listen to what people are saying in the community.

          8  Listen to their experiences. And also think about

          9  some of the great things that have been said by

         10  other bodies, and start there. Like the Task Force

         11  that the Mayor set up and promptly ignored and

         12  ridiculed, there are some great recommendations in

         13  there. And like the Amnesty International Report,

         14  like the Commission on Human Rights report a few

         15  years ago.

         16                 That's it for me.

         17                 Samantha Liapez is from New York City

         18  Police Watch, the number is up there, and she is

         19  after me, so I am going to take ten seconds of her

         20  time, report it to ADP if you have been a victim of

         21  misconduct or the New York City Police Watch number.

         22  We are sharing data with each other so that there is

         23  one place you can call.

         24                 You can report it to New York City

         25  Police Watch, the number is right up here. (212)
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          2  614-6454. And I will write out ADP's 24-hour hot

          3  line, you can report it to us as well, and we are

          4  doing data sharing.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Have you been

          6  abused too?

          7                 MR. GOKEN: I am a white guy in a

          8  suit, no.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Samatha Liapez?

         10                 MR. GOKEN: She is not here, that is

         11  why I gave you the number.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Okay.

         13                 Pam Rinando, Miriam Friedlander, Brad

         14  Wil are the next ones coming up.

         15                 Pam is the next one.

         16                 MS. RINANDO: I know I am going to

         17  surprise you, I am a New York City Police Officer

         18  actually, and I am dressed like this because the

         19  community I used to work in was a South Asian

         20  community, we had a large population of people from

         21  India. I wound up working with the Seeks (phonetic).

         22  I went in there when they were having some problems,

         23  and I went in there and I spoke to them and we wound

         24  up setting up classes and they put up a help line

         25  over there.
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          2                 But I was ridiculed because I did

          3  this on my own. I was ridiculed for what I believe

          4  in, and that is learning about the communities that

          5  we work in. It is also a safety issue that we know

          6  the traditions and understand them.

          7                 The problem with this job right now,

          8  and I am telling you, is that everything is arrest,

          9  arrest, arrest, okay? Cops jobs are being

         10  threatened, if they don't make arrests they are

         11  being transferred, and in October they transferred

         12  -- they told every boss in the City whoever you

         13  want to get rid of, tell us, 100 cops were

         14  transferred from one end of the City to the other. I

         15  was one of them. I brought the Human Rights

         16  Commission over to the 102 Precinct, and I was

         17  obviously a troublemaker, so-to-speak, so they got

         18  rid of me.

         19                 But there were also cops who had

         20  family problems. We had one cop that I had spoken

         21  to, he had five members of his family die in one

         22  year, and they transferred him from one end to

         23  another. There were people with CCRBs, I mean that

         24  is really a great idea, he got a CCRB, let's put him

         25  in another neighborhood that they are going to
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          2  bother. I mean, it was done arbitrarily.

          3                 We had a guy whose wife had lupis,

          4  his daughter had cerebral palsy, they sent him all

          5  the way into Brooklyn and away from the precinct

          6  that he was in.

          7                 Some of these officers, they had good

          8  records. You know, not everybody did, but the thing

          9  is that was their answer, that was a threat to every

         10  police officer.

         11                 A few months before I was

         12  transferred, there was a letter written on me. I

         13  hadn't made an arrest in five months, we call it a

         14  "49". I said, it's hard to make an arrest when you

         15  are sitting, guarding a prisoner in a hospital, you

         16  know? Or you are sent on the worst post because the

         17  cops don't want to work with you because you turned

         18  around and say -- well, you know, you got to

         19  understand the people that you are working with,

         20  and, you know, you treat somebody with disrespect,

         21  but this is the mentality. Cops are afraid of losing

         22  their jobs, they are afraid of being transferred.

         23  And it is not just the Street Crimes Unit you have

         24  to worry about.

         25                 We have a thing called the Tracer
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          2  Unit. The Tracer Unit is a uniformed group of people

          3  who go into buildings and take people out and do

          4  arrests, narcotics. They are just uniformed members.

          5  We have it now with uniformed members, it's like the

          6  Street Crimes and they just transfer people. You are

          7  like somebody who transfers from Central Park to the

          8  2-5 Precinct, this people were sent into minority

          9  and new immigrant neighborhoods, so that is the

         10  other thing you have to worry about.

         11                 I went to the other hearing and I

         12  said that, I mean I might not have my job after

         13  today, who knows, they put me through hell, and they

         14  look for anything. They took my guns away, you know,

         15  they listened to somebody that was a convert, that

         16  was like a -- she converted several times, she has

         17  caused trouble within the C community to certain

         18  people, so they looked for somebody and they found

         19  it.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Are you a

         21  current police officer?

         22                 MS. RINANDO: Yes. I was transferred

         23  from the 102nd Precinct to the 4-8 in the Bronx

         24  because of this, because I came out in the open

         25  about a lot of stuff and I brought it to different
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          2  politicians.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, what is

          4  your name again?

          5                 MS. RINANDO: Pam Rinando.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

          7                 Brad Wil.

          8                 MR. WIL: Brad Wil. Thank you. My name

          9  is Brad Wil. Yes, I have been the victim of police

         10  brutality in this precinct and 1st Precinct as well.

         11                 I guess there are a few things I want

         12  to talk about, I guess I can talk about the

         13  instances. About two years ago I found myself in my

         14  home where -- I used to live on East Fifth Street in

         15  a place formerly known as the Fifth Street Squad,

         16  and there was a building the City declared unfit for

         17  residents and I re-entered the building in hopes to

         18  defend it from an illegal demolition by the City,

         19  whereas the City began to demolish the building

         20  while I was inside, on two occasions during the day,

         21  and this, I guess, could be seen as an assault with

         22  a wreck and crane, but once I was apprehended I was

         23  held behind, with my hands behind my back above my

         24  -- held up by my wrists by handcuffs, and had my

         25  clothing cut, and all of my pockets cut open and my
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          2  possessions stolen and verbally abused by emergency

          3  service people who are here to rescue us, and held

          4  overnight for entering my home.

          5                 Recently, a couple of weeks ago, I

          6  was down at City Hall at the public hearing. As we

          7  all know, City Hall is a public space, and several

          8  of my friends were staging a sit-in to protest the

          9  auction of Sydney Gardens in New York City. I was

         10  there as a legal observer, and I was arrested for

         11  asking an officer why another friend of mine who was

         12  also a legal observer were being arrested, and have

         13  nerve damage in my hand from the handcuffs and spent

         14  the night in jail for no reason at all, except for

         15  being at a protest and being at a public hearing in

         16  a public building. And I don't want to see this kind

         17  of thing go on anymore. I am in a building right now

         18  that is under threat of eviction and I don't want to

         19  see anyone get hurt, but I am not leaving. Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Which kind of

         22  cuffs did they have? The plastic ones or the metal

         23  ones?

         24                 MR. WIL: Metal.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: This is the
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          2  next person, Sante -- I think it is Ardillo,

          3  although that could be a G, it could be Gardillo.

          4                 MR. WIL: He left.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: He left, okay.

          6                 Allegra Honigman. Oh, she left too.

          7                 Andrew Berman. Is Andrew still here?

          8  Andrew left.

          9                 Michael -- oh, I am sorry, I can't

         10  read the handwriting.

         11                 MR. LADEN: My name is Michael Laden,

         12  I am a member of the Cooper Square Association for

         13  many years. I came here just to listen, and as I was

         14  listening I thought, gee, I remember something

         15  happened, when I lived in Morrison I remember a

         16  second thing that happened, and before I knew it I

         17  had a several list of things here, and I would be up

         18  there, you know how it is, for a half an hour, and I

         19  have been dealing with environmental -- I guess I

         20  would call myself an environmental alternative

         21  health advocate, and you know, you can get involved

         22  up to here in all of these things, and then you

         23  listen to news reports and you say these people

         24  don't know what they are talking about.

         25                 One week I decided I would make
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          2  corrections on various media things that I heard,

          3  and it just kept me too busy, I couldn't do anything

          4  else. It's crazy. Even national public radio. The

          5  difference with WBAI, if you call up you say,

          6  thanks, okay, good, we will try to see what we can

          7  do about that. I can't imagine -- and I don't know

          8  if it's been mentioned here, but any one of the

          9  people coming here, anyone that has signed in today,

         10  should avoid supporting WBAI because that is our

         11  lifeline, that is at 99.5 FM, and I still have

         12  people that say, WBAI, what's that? It's different

         13  than national public radio because national public

         14  radio, half of the money comes from corporations and

         15  BAI accepts none of this.

         16                 I want to bring up one little thing.

         17  I was passing a small park on Second Avenue in the

         18  teens I think, and it was on last Rosh Hashana, my

         19  holiday, and I had taken a walk and I go to a little

         20  synagogue that's called The Little Synagogue, it's

         21  in the basement from a Lutheran Church on East 22nd

         22  Street, and I had walked up Second Avenue and on the

         23  way down there was a police officer and there was an

         24  old man. He was sitting in this little park and it

         25  said no adults without children, there is no one
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          2  else in this little park area playground, and this

          3  cop was making him take everything out of his

          4  pockets. The man was shaking, maybe he was in his

          5  seventies, mid-seventies. So, I am looking, and the

          6  cop glares at me, and I was deciding what I wanted

          7  to do about it. So, I walked a little ways over to

          8  the entrance way of the park, the cop saw me

          9  standing there, I said at least I will be a witness

         10  to this and then I will decide what to do. He was by

         11  himself, so I guess no one else wanted to work with

         12  him, and there are a lot of these people out there,

         13  sometimes two together, right? And he stepped back,

         14  looked at me and went for his revolver.

         15                 I want to say that this thing is of

         16  huge proportions here. And somebody was here from

         17  Brazil, I believe these things are tied in. There is

         18  the school of the assassins, the school of the

         19  Americas and 5,000 people came from around the

         20  country to go there, it was not covered, in order to

         21  make sure it wasn't covered, the military took half

         22  of them and dropped them off outside of town. I

         23  tried to get the BBC to cover it, and they hadn't

         24  heard anything about it --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I need to ask
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          2  you a question, I maybe misunderstood you. You said

          3  the police officer that --

          4                 MR. LADEN: Oh, yes, he went for his

          5  gun.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did he pull it

          7  out?

          8                 MR. LADEN: He went for it, but I

          9  decided there was nobody else around, no other

         10  police officers, I was trying to make up my mind

         11  what to do, so I stood within the neighborhood of

         12  the area. This was about a year or so ago.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         14                 MR. LADEN: And I want to say that

         15  somebody mentioned FBI. Nat Hentov (phonetic) said

         16  recently, and a right-winged weirdo on ABC said the

         17  same thing, and they didn't attack Nat Hentov

         18  afterwards. Recently Hentov said in an interview, on

         19  national public radio, that this Administration, we

         20  have lost more civil rights with this

         21  Administration. And this whole thing about this

         22  particular trial, it is so absurd, somebody said it

         23  could have very well been a smoke screen to cover up

         24  a lot of other stuff, but I don't know.

         25                 But right now with the Omnibus Crime
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          2  Bill that was passed, the FBI no longer has to go to

          3  court to tap, first they tap, then they go to court,

          4  no wonder Linda Tripp thought she could get away

          5  with it. And also, any new phone system that is put

          6  in by a company must coincide with the needs of the

          7  FBI, you know, what those needs are,.

          8                 And finally, if you are planning on

          9  taking a vacation out of the country, anybody

         10  leaving the country for any reason, any citizen,

         11  gets on record. I don't know how it works, but you

         12  have your passport and everything and you then have

         13  a file.

         14                 Okay, let me just say that this is

         15  broad proportions, we need to look at a lot of

         16  stuff, we need to look at the gap, we need to look

         17  beyond this crime bill, and the jail business.

         18                 Thank you very much. I am so glad I

         19  came by.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: That's

         21  everybody.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I just want to

         23  thank everybody for coming. Thank you, all, for

         24  staying until the end.

         25                 And let us, to the folks that are
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          2  still here, give you our office numbers in case you

          3  want to follow up. Mine is 924-9104. That is Council

          4  Member Quinn, 924-9104.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: Mine is easy

          6  to remember, 535-5554. Thank you, all.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And my

          8  telephone number is (212) 614-8751.

          9                 Before you leave we want to tell you

         10  that it is important for you to understand that we

         11  are going to follow up this forum. This is not just

         12  an exercise for you to come here, we listen to you,

         13  you listen to us and it's over. That is not what we

         14  are doing here.

         15                 This information that you have

         16  provided to us is going to be part of the record of

         17  the City Council, and we are going to take this

         18  information and we are going to process that.

         19                 One of the things that I would like

         20  to see happening, is a report from the Manhattan

         21  Delegation of the findings that we did through this

         22  hearing.

         23                 Please don't forget that tomorrow is

         24  another one in Washington Heights. Tuesday at the

         25  Gay and Lesbian Center is another one. And on the
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          2  15th is Ronnie Eldridge, right? On the 15th is on

          3  the upper west side at the building that is occupied

          4  by Goodard Riverside. Then tomorrow in the area of

          5  Washington Heights. The 16th, the Gay and Lesbian

          6  Community Center. And on the 15th, on the area of

          7  the upper west side in Goodard Riverside building,

          8  which is located on 88th Street on Columbus Avenue.

          9                 Thank you to all of you for coming.

         10  God bless you, and walk safe home.

         11                 (Hearing concluded at 9:40 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 10th day of March 1999.
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             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            113

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410
